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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ESNERATEBARBE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu”’)
Aged 56

Mr. Wu is the chairman, executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also currently a director of Orange Sky Entertainment
Group (International) Holding Company Limited (“OSEG") and its
subsidiaries. OSEG, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and being a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was founded by Mr. Wu in 2004 and is principally engaged in music and
musical production, artist management and advertising business in the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC"). With regard to film, Mr. Wu
acted respectively as executive producer of the two Chinese films Red
Cliff and The Warlords, as well as producer of other Chinese titles
including Call for Love, | am Liu Yuejin and Dangerous Games. In addition,
Mr. Wu has been involved in high technology and telecommunications
businesses since the 1990s. Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor's degree
in business administration from the SOKA University Japan in 1992, Mr.
WA joined the Company in October 2007 and is the cousin of Ms. Go
Misaki, an executive director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pei Sen (“Mr. Li”)
Aged 72

Mr. Li joined the Company as a non-executive director in March 2009
and was re-designated as an executive director of the Company in April
2010. He is also the associate chairman of OSEG. Mr. Li was an
associate director of China TV Production Centre in 1994 and the
general manager of China Central Television in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Li
joined China International Television Corporation (“TVC") as president
and was involved in its corporate structuring. During his presidency at
TVC, Mr. Li was also in charge of television production, as well as the
domestic and global licensing business of Chinese television
programmes. Prior to joining OSEG as the associate chairman, Mr. Li
served as the director of China TV Production Centre in 2000. Mr. Li
has over |5 years of working experience in film and television series
production and acted as the producer of more than a thousand
episodes of television series, including a number of popular and high
audience rating titles such as All men are brothers: blood of the leopard,
Taiping Heavenly Kingdom, Vernacular stories from the end of Western
Zhou Dynasty to the Qin Dynasty and The story of Hongkong and cartoon
series Journey to the West. In addition, Mr. Li is also a committee member
of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, a council member
of China TV Workers' Association, the vice-president of China TV, Film
Productions Committee, a member of the censorship expert committee
of State Administration of Radio, Film and Television, and a consultant
to TVC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ESNERATEBABE

Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona (‘“Ms. Chow”’)
Aged 47

Ms. Chow is an executive director and has been appointed as chief
operating officer (“COQ") of the Group since 24 April 2015 and is
responsible for managing the exhibition businesses of the Group in all
territories. She has also been assigned as the special assistant to
Chairman of the Company since | October 2010 and appointed as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Formerly, Ms. Chow
was appointed as Executive Director when she first joined the Group
on 30 October 2007. She had also held the position of chief financial
officer of the Company between | January 2008 and 3| December
2008. On 22 September 2009, Ms. Chow had been appointed as COO
of the Company and she resigned thereafter as Executive Director and
COO of the Company with effect from 23 August 2010 for personal
reasons. On the same day, she was re-designated as the managing
director of the China operation of the Company, which has focused on
the development of theatrical exhibition business in China and
subsequently she resigned from the position with effect from 30
September 2010.

Ms. Chow holds an M.B.A in Finance and Entrepreneurial Management
from the Wharton Business School at the University of Pennsylvania,
and a B.A. (Honors) in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Go Misaki (“Ms. Go”)
Aged 44

Ms. Go (former name: Wu Kexuan) has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effective from 9 September 2019 and is
also currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She has
served as general manager of Chikou Company Limited, a company
primarily engaging in telecommunications service for the last two
decades, since 2003. With almost 20 years of extensive working
experience in telecommunications service and entertainment industry,
Ms. Go provides professional consultation and service across the world
and participates in managing and executing network equipments
projects, screen & position advertising, alternative content, cinema-based
merchandise and other diversified entertainment. Ms. Go is the cousin
of Mr. Wu Kebo, being our current executive director.

Ms. Go graduated from Guangzhou Jinan University in 1996 with a
diploma of Foreign Trade and Economics and obtained a diploma of
General Art & Science from Mohawk College in Canada in 1999 and a
diploma of International Economy & Business from Nakano School of
Business in Japan in 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ESNERATEBARBE

Mr. Peng Bolun (“Mr. Peng”)
Aged 29

Mr. Peng, aged 29, has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company and the finance director of the China operation of the Group
effective from 9 September 2019. Before joining the Group, he
respectively served as a director from July 2017 to September 2019 and
assistant to chairman from March 2018 to September 2019 of Orange
Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited
("OSEG"). Prior to joining OSEG, Mr. Peng held several positions at
Ernst & Young (China) Advisory Limited from 2015 to 2016 and
Northeast Securities from 2016 to 2017, where he specialized in
derivative valuation, transaction services and investment banking. Mr.
Peng obtained a master's degree in Financial Engineering from Cornell
University in 2014. He is a CFA charterholder and a certified FRM.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leung Man Kit Michael (“Mr. Leung”)
Aged 66

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director, and the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since February 2008 and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company since 26 March 2012. As of 18
September 2019, Mr. Leung has commenced his Responsible Officer
Type 6 role in Grand Moore Capital Limited. Mr. Leung obtained a
bachelor’s degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong in
1977 and has over 30 years of experience in project finance and
corporate finance. He has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital
(China) Limited, SG Securities (HK) Limited (previously known as
Crosby Securities (Hong Kong) Limited), Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong
Kong Branch. Mr. Leung was also a director of Emerging Markets
Partnership (Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the
AlG Infrastructure Fund L.P.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
ESNERATEBABE

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Leung holds or held
directorships in the following listed companies in the past three years:

Netease.com Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ

(stock code: NTES)*

B RETER EHZRAE

(R&AD SR © NTES) *

China Ting Group Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3398)

EREEZEBRERAR]  RER

EmzRa (BRmHASE : 3398)

Unitas Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8020)
RAEREBBR AR - B P GEM
bz 2R (B 5 - 8020)

China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1886)
HEERFAEEER AR - RBERPIER
Emz AR (B : 1886)

China Electronics Optics Valley Union
Holding Company Limited, a company

listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange (stock code: 798)*
PERABARBARAT - 5
Emz AR (B - 798)*

Luye Pharma Group Ltd.,

July 2002 to present
—ZETEFEAES

November 2005 to present
“EERF+—AES

Independent non-executive
director

BUIFNITES

Independent non-executive
director

BIUFFNITER

October 201 | to November 2018  Executive director

—E——F+ A=
—E-N\F+—H

June 2012 to January 2019
—E-—FXA=E

—FT-NEF—A

March 2014 to present
—E-NE=AES

June 2014 to present

WITES

Independent non-executive
director

BUIFNITES

Independent non-executive
director

BIUFFITES

Independent non-executive

a company listed on the Main Board of —E-NERAES director
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2186)* BYIEMITES
HMEREEEFR AR RERAER
EHZ AR (RMDAEE - 2186)*
* Mr. Leung is also the chairman of the audit committee of these — * REENRZERFZEREEGER
companies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ESNERATEBARBE

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong”’)
Aged 41

Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee
of the Company with effect from 26 April 2010. She has been
appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee since 26 March
2012. Ms. Wong has over ten years of accounting experience in the
profession. She has been the chief financial officer since July 2010 and
was joint company secretary between February 2009 and March 2017
of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited which was previously listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a
constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite Index. Ms. Wong was
previously employed as the group chief financial officer of OSEG. She
was also previously employed as the financial controller of Avex China
Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company established by OSEG
and Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange. Ms. Wong ceased to be the group chief financial officer of
OSEG and financial controller of Avex China Company Limited in
January 2008. She was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong in 2001. She
also obtained an EMBA from the China Europe Intermational Business
School in 2012. Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Wong holds or held
directorships in the following listed companies in the past three years:

Rici Healthcare Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1526)*
B ERSIERAR LR - RERAER
ERZ AR (BRAAEE : 1526)*
Wangsu Science & Technology Co. Ltd,
a company listed on the ChiNext Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300017)*
BERMBERNERAR - WRIIEHR S EIER
Lz AR (B  300017)*
ZHEJIANG DAHUA TECHNOLOGY CO,, LTD.
a company listed on the SME Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002236)
HIRERMRNERATE - WRINEHZ SR
/R BT 2 AR (B H5% ¢ 002236)
GANFENG LITHIUM CO,, LTD., a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1772), and the SME Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002460)
TSI ERN AR DR - RERAER
Emz AR (BRREE : 1772)
KRYIEHZ 5 R/ MEEIR
Lz AR (B + 002460)

—=

* Ms. Wong is also the chairlady of the audit committee of the company.

# Ms. Wong is also the chairlady of the remuneration and evaluation
committee of the company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ESNERATEBABE

Mr. Fung Chi Man Henry (‘“Mr. Fung”)
Aged 51

Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director and the
member of the audit committee of the Company since 3 June 2016. Mr.
Fung has over twenty years of experience in the legal profession. He is a
partner of Holman Fenwick Willan (“"HFW") since 1999 and the chief
representative of the Shanghai Office of Holman Fenwick Willan LLP.
Mr. Fung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Laws and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also has a
PRC law degree from the China University of Political Science and Law.
Mr. Fung is currently a practicing solicitor of the High Courts of Hong
Kong and England & Wales. Mr. Fung is also a notary public and a China-
appointed attesting officer in Hong Kong. Besides, Mr. Fung is also a civil
celebrant of marriages, an HKIAC arbitrator, a member of the Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal, HKICPA Disciplinary Panel, CAAO Disciplinary
Panel and a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings) in Hong
Kong.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Xu Hua (“Mr. Xu”)

Aged 41

Mr. Xu was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Group
("Chief Executive Officer”) effective from 2 October 2019. He has
extensive professional experience in the fields of corporate strategy,
mergers & acquisitions, investment banking and investment management.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu served as executive director with
ICBC International Holdings Limited from 2017, focusing on corporate
finance and capital markets business of financial services, technology,
media and entertainment industries. Before that, he served as portfolio
manager with Da Cheng International Asset Management Company
Limited during the period of 2015 to 2017, and director with BOCOM
International (Shanghai) Equity Investment Management Company
Limited during the period of 2014 to 2015, focusing on investment
business in financial services, technology, media and entertainment
industries. And before that, Mr. Xu worked for Goldman Sachs New
York Headquarters and China office in its investment banking division
during the period of 2011 to 2013, providing corporate finance and
mergers & acquisitions advisory services for clients in North America
and Asia Pacific region. He also worked for Merrill Lynch Asia Pacific
Hong Kong Headquarters during the period of 2006 to 2008, as well as
Citigroup China and Australia Headquarters during the period of 2003
to 2006, responsible for group corporate strategy, mergers &
acquisitions, and business development. Mr. Xu started his career with
LEK. Consulting China office in its strategy consulting business.

Mr. Xu holds a Master of Business Administration from MIT Sloan
School of Management and a Master in Public Administration in
International Development from Harvard Kennedy School in the United
States, a Master of Philosophy in Management Studies from Cambridge
Judge Business School in the United Kingdom, as well as a Bachelor of
Economics from School of Economics, Peking University in China.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the
Group for the year ended 3| December 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

2019 is a year of strategic transformation for the Group, while we
continue to strengthen our market leadership position in the film
exhibition and distribution business, the Group has successfully
penetrated into the fast-growing live entertainment business in PRC as
we confirmed with local governments to operate 4 state-of-the-art 360
theatres from 2021 onwards. We are actively looking to expand rapidly
into the live entertainment business and confident that it will become a
major revenue driver for the Group in the near future.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
THERES

During the year, we continue to pride ourselves as the only cinema
chain in the world that operates across virtually all of the Chinese
speaking regions with undisputed market leader position in Singapore
and Taiwan attributing to 45.6% and 39.0% of local gross box office.
The Group has opened 4 new cinemas in 2019 adding 29 screens to a
total of 37 cinemas and 300 screens, with additional 5 cinemas and 55
screens scheduled to open in the next 4 years. We are committed to
broaden our offerings and improve audiences’ experiences by
introducing premium food and beverage, as well as alternative contents
including but not limited to live concerts and theatre broadcast. The
Group's exhibition business provides stable recurring cashflow and offer
extensive network to position the Group for further development into
the wider media and entertainment sectors.

The Group recorded total revenues of HK$1,060.8 million in 2019,
while this represents a year-on-year increase of 0.9% only, this is indeed
a remarkable achievement considering the difficult operating
environment amidst social unrest in Hong Kong and the lack of
blockbuster hits in the second half of the year. Despite the Group
recorded HK$35.1 million loss attributable to shareholders in 2019, as
compared to a profit of HK$52.5 million in the previous year, the
Group's underlying profitability has remained resilient over the year. The
Group's loss was attributable largely to non-cash impacts from (i)
accounting policy changes including: application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 16, Leases (“HKFRS 16”) from | January 2019,
resulting in HK$34.8 million additional interest expenses on right-of-use-
assets for the Group and HK$7.l million reduction in share of profit
from joint venture; and (i) HK$9.0 million re-valuation loss on the
Group’s investment property in Hong Kong. The Group’s operating
performance is in line with 2018.

PROSPECTS

COVID-19 outbreak in 2020 has posted serious challenge to worldwide
economy, particularly the lockdown measures imposed by various
countries have severely affected the retail and entertainment industries.
Having said that, we are confident that the Group’s strong liquidity with
net cash position as of the year ended 3| December 2019, stringent
cost control measures, together with government supports will provide
large buffer for the Group to weather the difficult times. Of particular
note, the Group has signed a HK$1,548.0 million 3-Year Committed
Loan Facility participated by 5 banks against reduced interest rate amidst
the height of COVID-19 impact, proving the Group's strong fundraising
capability and prudent financial management.

The Group firmly believes that negative impact from COVID-19 is
short-lived and the Group’s performance will recover rapidly thereafter.
Looking forward, the Group will continue to take active steps to
strengthen our market leader position in the traditional film exhibition
business via new cinema multiplexes setup, and opportunistic
acquisitions of regional entertainment companies that have synergy to
the Group’s existing business. Leveraging on our network across the
entertainment industries across PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore, and
Taiwan, we will actively expand into other non-film live entertainment
businesses across our operating geographies to deliver rapid growth to
shareholders

12 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
THERES

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board and our management team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my appreciation to the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their supports and cooperation. |
hereby express my sincere gratitude to all our Directors for their
support and advice, and committed staff for their hard work and efforts,
which have contributed to the success of the Group and led to the
sustainable development of our business.

F35}2019

B

RAZRREFTGRERER - FBibeRHRE
BEPREBEHZZFNAE - AAZRLE2EE
EZXHNEH  URBETHELBTARERZK
DEREBFHEREZRMEL Z MBRE ARTRL
WE -

BAEREg(EE)sRAT 13



MANAGEMENT =mgsn

DISCUSSION & )32 AT
~ T o - == ANALYSIS

P

Hone Kone & & N =
24 screens / 8% § =§ —

Tawan & &

164 screens / R %

SINGAPORE T 13§
112 screens / 8%

Y

14 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019!



ORANGE SKY

GOLDEN HARVEST'S 1;%9& :J'Eﬁiﬁ

CINEMA #m4

PORTFOLIO

(as of 31 December 2019 #Z_ZE—NF+_A=+—H)

Net average

Admissions ticket price

Number of Number of (million) (HK$)

cinemas screens AZER FHERE

208 4] REBE (BBAR) (87T)

Hong Kong BB 7 24 22 8l

Singapore N 14 12 83 6l

Taiwan A 16 |64 I5.1 60

Total s 37 300 256 62
432019 BXREAREEBDERAT 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

EIEEN R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Founded half a century ago, the Group has become Asia’s premier
entertainment company primarily engaged in film exhibition, film and TV
programme production and distribution businesses. Since its inception,
the group has produced and financed over 600 movies, and played an
important role in distribution of Chinese language movies. To date, the
Group owns a movie library of more than 140 films for distribution.

In addition, the Group has recently expanded into the arenas of live
show performances, club house business, and entertainment centre
business, in order to capitalise our branding equity and goodwill,
leverage our resources, creativity and our management expertise in the
entertainment industry, and commercialise our intelligent property
rights.

Film Exhibition

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we opened a cinema with 5
screens and closed a cinema with 5 screens in Hong Kong, opened a
cinema with 7 screens in Singapore, and opened 2 cinemas with |7
screens in Taiwan. At 3| December 2019, we operated 37 cinemas
with 300 screens in total across Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore. Our
cinemas served approximately 25.5 million guests as compared to 26.6
million guests in last year. The major Hollywood blockbusters released
in this year were Alita: Battle Angel ($225 : 8{[7]X{&), Captain Marvel
(Marvell5 ), Avengers: Endgame (TR & B E84 - #8/5,2 &), Aladdin
(FTAI T), Spider-Man: Far From Home (B85 « #8{F &), POKEMON
Detective Pikachu (POKEMON 7845 Pikachu), Toy Story 4 (IR>L &7 ££4),
Fast & Furious: Hobbs & Shaw (JEEFBF#R : EEJERERT), Joker (/)NFE),
Frozen Il (JEZE 77 #%2) and Star Wars: The Rise of Skywalker (£ B A& -

K7TEUYRAE). The major Chinese language blockbusters for the year
were Integrity (BRIX/RZE 1E#), The New King Of Comedy (¥TZ &<
), P Storm (P/EI£E), The White Storm 2 Drug Lords (7 822K b 314
and Ip Man 4: The Finale (274 : 5E45/%) from Hong Kong; Killer Not
Stupid (F8F T2K) from Singapore; Mayday LiFE (7 H KA EHER L
7)) and Detention (&%) from Taiwan.

16 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
BERE W RO

Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas FRESFHRHRZEENE

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BEZFE-NF+A=1T—HIFE)

Number of cinemas* kBN * 7 14 16
Number of screens* REEE * 24 12 164
Admissions (million) ASER(ABAR) 22 83 5.1
Net average ticket price (HK$) FFHEE BT 81 61 60
* at 31 December 2019 * RZZ—NF+=A=+—8

The Group is dedicated to provide high quality and versatile video and ~ AEREHEABRIEHEL S 2 REHER
audio experience for its audiences. All screens of the Group have been & ° ANEREFT A RBEC A LEBITRME - NEE
equipped with advanced digital equipment. There were 8 IMAX® RZ-F— NG+ A=+ -BEAZXEF/\R
screens in total for the Group in Taiwan as at 31 December 2019. The ~ IMAX@RE - AKE T —ERBRREABTER
Group has also been enhancing the experience for our audiences by 7 & 3 & 3 5 3D R 4t » 4DXTM » D-Box &) &% B
equipping 3D systems, 4DXTM, D-Box Motion Chairs, Advanced & ~ SEEREH L EFBAFRDTXEERR °
Panorama Dolby Atoms and DTSX sound systems in our cinemas in

different regions.

Hong Kong B
Operating Statistics of the Group's Cinemas in Hong Kong FEBEBRB EERIK
(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BEZFE-NF+ZA=1T—HIFE)
2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F
Number of cinemas* SRR * 7 7/
Number of screens* IREBE* 24 24
Admissions (million) AZER (ABAR) 22 2.0
Net average ticket price (HK$) FEER (B 81 84
Box office receipts (HK$ million) ERBARA (BEE) 174 167

*

* at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NAF+-A=+—H

During the year under review, the Hong Kong market as a whole ~ HREIEFR  EETHEESEEEFKAR 19319
recorded box office receipts of HK$1,931.9 million, a decrease of 1.8%  {E/&7T » \EF 19.669 BB TTH D 1.8% « RAFE -
from HK$1,966.9 million in last year. The Group’s cinemas in Hong ~AKEFEZWHEFEFWRARI740BET(ZF
Kong recorded box office receipts of HK$174.0 million in this year — —/\%F : L6692 18/&TT) - EIER42% - BRIENER
(2018: HK$166.9 million), representing an increase of 4.2%. The HMREZZ-NFTFFHIRMIFTZM - FA -
increase was primarily attributable to the 2 new cinemas opened during ~ AEBEZ &FBFHEZREBEME =8B - RER
the second half of 2018. Net average ticket price of the Group slightly ~ FTRRFZMNREEERSIZZEH -

decreased to HK$8! during the year in Hong Kong since the newly

opened cinemas are having a lower ticket price in order to attract more

audiences.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BEBNWN TN

To enable our cinemas becoming entertainment hubs of greater scope,
we showed 86 alternative contents in 2019. It was encouraging that we
developed a competent team in organising the alternative contents and
a strong base of alternative content fans. It was proven by our successful
alternative content shows such as the Live Broadcast of “LOVELIVE!" and
“iIDOLM@STER", which respectively, reached a remarkable 64% and 56%
fill rates and the two broadcasts recorded an average ticket price of
HK$330.

Apart from this, the Live Broadcast of “2019 Wanna One Concert
[Therefore] Live Viewing” and “BTS World Tour ‘Love Yourself: Speak
Yourself [The Final]" were extremely successful with a fill rate of 99.8%
and 100%.

Screen Advertising was also a profit driver to our Hong Kong region as
we have already contracted with 28 cinemas as at 31 December 2019,
and we expect steady growth in revenue and profit in coming years.

Singapore

Operating Statistics of the Group's Cinemas in Singapore
(For the year ended 31 December 2019)

BLETERKAEZ T2 R%IEM  AEBK =
T-NFLESHBIFERNE - HMEAHARE — X %A
MWEEEEERSENE  WES—BSEHES
BRI K EERIERISERE [LOVELIVE] K&
[iIDOLM@STER] ER Z 5 1BEN E » %2581 B » Rk
BAERSIE 64% K 56% » MILLMIBEREEE 2 ¥
Z=EHA30ET KESATE-

Br ot LA AN - 38 35 B B 2019 Wanna One Concert
[Therefore] Live Viewing] . [BTS Wortd Tour ‘Love Yourself
Speak Yourself [The Final]] ¥9ER /S 22 RIAC T + A B &
=3 99.8% K 100% °

SRR AR R ENE S 0B 2 AR - 1=
2-nF+=A=+—A  KEEEEBRIUMT
4 BETRORTBE 2 W R FE BB R -

%
FE BRI 2 £ERIR
(BE=ZF—NF+-A=+—HIFE)

2019 2018

o =%

Number of cinemas* WEE * 14 13
Number of screens* IREEE * 112 105
Admissions (million) AGER(BEAR) 83 88
Net average ticket price (S$) FAFRE T 106 10.6
Net box office receipts (S$ million) ERWA(B&EFINET) 88 94

* at 31 December 2019

During the year, the Singapore market net box office receipts dropped
by 3.5% to S$192.4 million (2018: S$199.4 million). Golden Village
cinemas reported net box office receipts of S$87.6 million (2018:
S$93.8 million), representing a decrease in net box office receipts of
6.6% compared to last year. Nevertheless, the Group continued to be
the market leader with a market share of 45.6% (47.1% in 2018).
Golden Village cinemas’ automated ticketing machines and auto-gates
give patrons an easy, fast and efficient cinematic experience like none of
the other competitors in Singapore.

18 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BERE W RO

Hollywood blockbusters are always popular in Singapore and bring a
stable profit contribution to the Group. Hollywood blockbusters
released during the year included Alita: Battle Angel (£222 : E{[7K{(&E),
Captain Marvel (Marvelf5£<), Avengers: Endgame (TE11 5 B 584 - 45/5
Z8), Aladdin (FT#2 T), Spider-Man: Far From Home (13515 : JF# 8T
), POKEMON Detective Pikachu (POKEMON f#£% Pikachu), Toy Story
4 (JRLE££4), Fast & Furious: Hobbs & Shaw (JEEFRFIE : EE1HREE),
Joker (/NE), Frozen Il (EZE 27 #52) and Star Wars: The Rise of Skywalker
(BECKB; - X7TEUYE#E). The major Chinese language blockbuster
from Singapore was Killer Not Stupid (#8F T4K).

Taiwan

Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Taiwan
(For the year ended 31 December 2019)

Number of cinemas* SMELR *
Number of screens* REEE *

AZBR (BB AR)
FREEGIEE)
ZEBA(TEHEE)

Admissions (million)
Net average ticket price (NTD)
Net box office receipts (NTD billion)

* at 31 December 2019

During the year, Taiwan’'s market gross box office receipts amounted to
NTD 0.2 billion, registering a decrease of 5.5% from NTD 0.8 billion in
last year. The Group's 35.71% owned Vie Show cinema circuit (“Vie
Show") recorded total net box office receipts of NTD3,616.6 million
(2018: NTD3,732.3 million), representing a decrease of 3.1% from last
year as a result of the weaker exhibition market. However, it still
outperformed the overall Taiwan market. The share of reportable
segment profit from Vie Show decreased from HK$36.5 million to
HK$35.7 million compared to last year, representing a 2.0% decline. Vie
Show continued to be the largest film exhibitor in Taiwan. Adhering to
the Group's comprehensive entertainment hub strategy, Vie Show
continues to strengthen its operation in its popular “UNICORN"
handmade popcorn business in its |15 cinemas and introduced the
famous Japanese French Toast restaurant (lvorish) into Taichung Mitsui
Outlet Park in December 2018 which is the first store of the brand
outside Japan. In addition, Vie Show has successfully launched
SNOWTOWN (Z£E1h) in Taichung Mitsui Outlet Park in June 2019
attracting overwhelming crowds of customers to visit with tremendous
positive reviews from the market.

F35}2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BEBNWN TN

Film & TV Programme Distribution and Production

On an aggregated basis the Group’s film distribution and production
business recorded revenue of HK$69.1 million (2018: HK$53.6 million),
representing an increase of 28.9% compared to last year. The
distribution revenue was mainly generated by distributing releases such
as Chasing The Dragon Il: Wild Wild Bunch (38 8€ll - ), The White
Storm 2 Drug Lords (17 & 2K #14), Little Q (//>Q) and Guilt by Design
(fEHRE - %), The famous releases outside Hong Kong were John Wick
3 (FA$ John Wick 3), Han Dan (ZE) and Ip Man 4: The Finale (3]
4 : SL4Z)) in Taiwan and John Wick 3 (4% John Wick 3), Fall In Love
At First Kiss (—Y)E18), Angel Has Fallen (H B @43 + X1EHFE) and
Weathering With You (A< F) in Singapore. For the production
sector, the Group will continue to invest independently and
cooperatively with local and overseas studios to produce movies and
TV programmes of high quality and carry out intellectual property
redevelopment in the foreseeable future. The Group’s film library with
perpetual distribution rights kept on bringing steady licensing income to
the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Profit and Loss

During the year, the Group’s revenue increased by 0.9% to HK$1,060.8
million. The Group's gross profit increased by 2.3% to HK$668.6 million
and gross profit margin improved slightly by 0.8 percentage point to
63.0%.

Share of profit of a joint venture in 2019 amounted to HK$24.6 million,
a decrease of 31.5%.

Loss attributable to equity holders was HK$35.1 million, as compared to
profit attributable to equity holders of HK$52.5 million in last year. It
was attributable primarily to (i) the application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 16, Leases (effective from | January 2019), which
results in the increase in related expenses of HK$29.8 million on the
leases of the Group for the year; (ii) cinema revenue was affected by
the lack of blockbuster hits for the second half year; (iii) the re-valuation
loss of HK$9 million on the investment property; and (iv) the pre-
operating expenses of the new businesses of HK$39.6 million. Total
reportable segment profits after taxation of Hong Kong, Singapore and
Taiwan regions stood at HK$177.2 million compared with HK$195.2
million in last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BERE W RO

Statement of Financial Position

Our financial position remained healthy. The Group’s net assets
decreased by 1.2% to HK$2,155.9 million as at 3|1 December 2019.
Total assets increased by HK$696.0 million to HK$4,722.2 million. This
was mainly due to the application of HKFRS 16 effective from | January
2019. Under HKFRS 16, the lease liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate and the right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Therefore, the Group recognised the right-of-use
assets for its leases which attributable to the increase in total assets.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group was HK$1,068.3 million (31
December 2018: HK$1,290.1 million). Non-current pledged bank
balances were kept at HK$137.0 million, at the same level as last year.
Outstanding borrowings amounted to HK$1,057.1 million (31
December 2018: HK$1,299.3 million), which comprised mainly interest-
bearing bank loans. The interest-bearing bank loans were secured by
pledged cash, corporate guarantees, equity shares and properties. The
Group's gearing ratio (measured as bank borrowings to total assets) was
decreased to 22.4% (31 December 2018: 32.3%) and the Group was in
a net cash position (measured as cash and bank deposits less bank
borrowings) of HK$148.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$127.7
million). The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the
application of HKFRS 16 effective from | January 2019 where right-of-
use assets have been recognised for leases.

OUTLOOK

Local and regional economy is expected to enter into a negative
economic growth cycle, which arises from the Sino-US trade disputes
and the political unrest in Hong Kong since June 2019. In addition, with
the outbreak of the COVID-19 in the world since early 2020, the
Group expects that Hong Kong and regional economy will further
deteriorate and worsen. The economic downturn, uncertainties towards
future economic prospects have adversely affected the whole retails,
hospitality and entertainment industry. Such negative impact is expected
to persist in the near future and will affect our results of operations in
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BEBNWN TN

Although the overall operating environment becomes increasingly
challenging, the Group will continue to strengthen its core
competencies, focusing on capturing expansion opportunities in
exhibition and distribution businesses. Meanwhile, the Group will also
explore new business opportunities in media, entertainment, technology
and lifestyle sectors that would create synergies to the Group and add
values to the Shareholders.

In the PRC, the Group has entered into live show performance business,
introducing the unique advanced stage technology from Europe and the
renowned creative talents from all over the world, dedicated to provide
a stunning theatrical experience to local audience. In addition, the
Group has also invested in club house business targeting creative minds
from entertainment, creative and art industries. The Group intends to
host movie-related events at club houses which will attract and gather
talents from the movie and entertainment industry, enabling the Group
to build connections with potential investors and film production talents
within the industry. This is in line with the Group’s strategies to explore
opportunities to produce and/or co-invest in an average target of one
to two new mid-to-large scale films every year by remaking films from
the Group’s film library, and/or engage in new film production from
existing scripts and co-investing in PRC's films.

In Hong Kong, the Group has further invested into the film exhibition
business by opening one new cinema “Golden Harvest V Walk” in Nam
Cheong in July 2019. Riding on the success of alternative contents in
previous years, the Group will cooperate with different business
partners to offer a variety of events including live broadcasting of
Japanese and Korean mini-concerts and fans gathering in our cinemas. It
is expected that the demand for alternative shows will continue to
grow. At the same time, the Group is dedicated to look for investment
opportunities in quality film and/or distribution projects in the territory.

In Singapore, the Group will continue to grow by actively pursuing
suitable cinema sites. The new 7-screen Funan site has just been opened
around end of June 2019 with great attendance. The Group is dedicated
to maintain high quality services in regular and gold class auditoriums
and to introduce creative product offerings such as toys merchandise to
its customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BERE W RO

In Taiwan, Vie Show will continue to expand its cinema network with a
stable pipeline of potential sites to be opened in the coming years. A
new 8-screen site in central Taipei has been opened in December 2019.
Encouraging results of alternative contents and distribution businesses
have also brought in additional revenues streams to the Group.
Moreover, the Group has successfully introduced “SNOWTOWN" and
“Ivorish” to Taichung Port.

SNOWTOWN s an indoor theme park that allows visitors to enjoy
snow at a “feels like” temperature of 20°C. Ivorish is a famous French
toast restaurant in Japan, with the name expressing French toast color
(ivory) and cherish (cherish), meaning to bring delicious French toast
and happiness to customers. Both properties have been proven to be
successful, helping to diversify the business in the territory.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to actively seek investment
opportunities in the regional media, entertainment, technology and
lifestyle sectors that are related and/or creating synergies to the Group'’s
existing businesses. The Directors are confident that the Group will be
able to achieve sustainable growth and deliver long term value to the
shareholders, and at the same time diversify the business achieving
better positioning of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$1,068.3 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,290.1
million). The Group's total outstanding bank borrowings amounted to
HK$1,057.1 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,299.3 million). The
Group's gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of bank borrowings over
total assets stood at a healthy level of 22.4% (31 December 2018:
32.3%) and our cash to bank borrowings ratio at | 14.0% (31 December
2018: 109.8%). This was mainly due to the application of HKFRS 16
effective from | January 2019 where right-of-use assets have been
recognised for leases. As of 31 December 2019, the Group had
HK$137.0 million pledged cash balances to secure its banking facilities.
In order to minimise potential risks for the Group’s development and
economic status, the management will keep monitoring gearing and will
make relative adjustments if necessary. The Group at this moment has
reasonable financial leverage. Meanwhile, the Group takes advantage of
equity financing together with available bank loan facilities to fund the
cinema projects, potential acquisitions of profitable business
opportunities so as to implement its expansion plan. The Group
believes that its current cash holding and available financial facilities will
provide sufficient resources for its working capital requirements.

The Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars, except for certain assets
and liabilities associated with the investments in Taiwan. The overseas
joint ventures of the Group are operating in their local currencies and
are subject to minimal exchange risk. The directors will continue to
assess the exchange risk exposure, and will consider possible hedging
measures in order to minimise the risk at reasonable cost. The Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities or off balance sheet
obligations as of 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 484 (2018: 367) permanent
employees. The Group remunerates its employees mainly by reference
to industry practice. The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and as at 31 December 2019, there were no
forfeited contributions arising from employees leaving the retirement
benefit scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
maintain the Group's competitiveness and lead to its healthy growth.
The Company has taken steps not only to comply with code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under
Appendix |14 to the Listing Rules but also to aim at enhancing corporate
governance practices of the Group as whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of CG Code, with the exception of code
provisions A4.l and E.1.2.

Pursuant to code provision A4.l of the CG Code, non-executive
directors of a listed issuer should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. All non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company's
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
code provisions of the CG Code.

According to code provision E.|.2, Mr. Wu Kebo, the Chairman of the
Board, should have attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 14 June 2019. However, Mr. Wu Kebo was unable to
attend the abovementioned annual general meeting due to another
business commitment. Mr. Li Pei Sen, who took the chair of the said
annual general meeting, together with other members of the Board
who attended the annual general meeting were of sufficient caliber and
knowledge for answering questions at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). The Company has made specific enquiries with all the
Directors and all of them have confirmed that they had complied with
the requirements set out in the Model Code and the Company's Code
for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executive Officer” on pages
4 to 9 of this annual report.

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of
the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
throughout the year to discuss the overall strategies as well as operation
and financial performances of the Group. Matters relating to (i) the
formulation of the Group’s overall strategy and directions; (i) any
material conflict of interest of substantial shareholders of the Company
or Directors; (i) approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets,
interim results and other significant operational and financial
transactions;(iv) changes to the Company's capital structure; and (v)
major appointments to the Board are reserved for decisions by the
Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of Board policies and strategies to the executive Directors
and management of the Company.

All Directors have given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the
Group and they have full and timely access to all relevant information
regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company's expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage has been effected by the
Company in respect of Directors’ liabilities arising from any legal action
that may be taken against the Directors in relation to corporate
activities.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, full board meetings and
general meetings of the Company were held and the individual
attendance of the Directors at these meetings are as follows:

Executive Directors HITEF

Wu Kebo (Chairman) R (F/E)
Mao Yimin (Note /) EERMF)
Wu Keyan (Note 2) hr R (Hfat2)

Li Pei Sen ESrey

Chow Sau Fong, Fiona BFEH

Go Misaki (Note 3) Go Misaki (M7 3)
Peng Bolun (Note 4) Tt (i 4)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIRTES
Leung Man Kit RREGE

Wong Sze Wing LIS

Fung Chi Man, Henry FHE

Notes:

. Mr. Mao Yimin (“Mr. Mao") has resigned as CEO and Executive Director
with effect from 31 October 2019.

2. Ms. Wu Keyan (“Ms. Wu") has resigned as Executive Director with effect
from 9 September 2019. She is the sister of Mr. Wu.

3. Ms. Go has appointed as Executive Director with effect from 9
September 2019. She is the cousin of Mr. Wu and Ms. Wu.

4. Mr. Peng has appointed as Executive Director with effect from 9
September 2019.

At least |4 days’ prior notice to the date of regular Board meetings was
given to all Directors and an agenda together with Board papers and
materials were sent to all Directors no less than three days before the
date of the Board meeting. All Directors were given opportunity to
include in the agenda any other matters that they would like to discuss
in the meeting. The Board committee also adopted and followed the
foregoing procedures for the Board committee meetings. All Directors
and Board committee members were urged to attend the Board
meeting and the Board committee meeting in person. If any Director or
Board committee member was unable to attend any such meeting in
person, participation through electronic means had been arranged and
made available to such Director and Board committee member.
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If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being
considered in the Board meeting, the Director having such potential
interest in the matter shall abstain from voting. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest were present at such
meeting to deal with such conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and Board committee meeting and, within a
reasonable time after each meeting, the draft minutes were circulated
to all Directors for comment and the final and approved version of the
minutes was sent to all Directors for their records. The Board
committee had also adopted and followed the same practices and
procedures as used in the Board meetings.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director
a written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board considers
all of them to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The appointment of independent non-executive Directors adheres to
the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
7 June 2016, Mr. Fung is a partner of Holman Fenwick Willan (“HFW"),
which is currently providing services to the Company and one of its
subsidiaries relating to a debt collection case, the Company is satisfied
that the appointment of Mr. Fung as an independent non-executive
Director is justified due to the following reasons:

(@  Mr. Fung has not had and does not have any executive or
management role or functions in the Company and its
subsidiaries, nor has he been involved in the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations or employed by any member of
the Group;

(b)  Mr. Fung does not have any familial or contractual relationships
with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, nor does he hold any other position with
the Company or its connected persons, or any of their respective
holding company or subsidiaries;

() Mr. Fung has over 20 years of experience and knowledge of the
legal industry. The Company believes that Mr. Fung is able to
exercise his professional judgment and draw upon his extensive
legal knowledge for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole, in particular, the independent
shareholders;

(d) Mr Fung is able to confirm his independence to the Exchange in
respect of each of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules other than Rule 3.13(3) which considers whether an
individual is independent if he is a director, partner or principal of
a professional adviser which currently provides services to a listed
issuer, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
or core connected persons; and
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(e)  HFW is currently providing services to the Company and one of
its subsidiaries in relation to one particular debt collection case.
The case is being handled by other solicitors of HFW, and Mr.
Fung personally has not been directly or indirectly involved in
handling such particular case or otherwise in the provision of any
legal advice or services to the Company and any of its subsidiaries.
Therefore, the Company considers that this should not affect Mr.
Fung's independence. Further, whilst Mr. Fung remains a director
of the Company, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
intends to engage HFW for any services after the appointment of
Mr. Fung, except for the ongoing debt collection case. Mr. Fung
will also excuse himself from any discussion of the Board involving
HFW as legal adviser for a particular matter, handling dispute
between HFW and the Company (if any) or reviewing the
performance of HFW.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for (i) Ms. Wu who is
the sister of Mr. Wu; (i) Mr. Li who is the associate chairman of Orange
Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited (a
company which is owned as to 80% by Mr. Wu); (i) Ms. Go who is the
cousin of Mr. Wu and Ms. Wu and the interests as set out in the
paragraphs headed "“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” and “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares” in the “Report of the Directors” in this annual
report, there is no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among members of the Board.

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be provided
with necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. All the Directors except Mr. Mao and Ms. Wu who have resigned
with effect from 31 October 2019 and 9 September 2019 respectively,
namely Mr. Wu, Mr. Li, Ms. Chow, Ms. Go, Mr. Peng, Mr. Leung, Ms.
Wong and Mr. Fung, were provided with reading materials on updates
about directors’ responsibilities and role and function of board
committees; the role of independent non-executive directors in
corporate governance; and training materials for ESG governance and
reporting. All Directors have provided the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
controls and risk management systems of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wu, is responsible for providing
leadership of the Board and ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at the Board meeting. In addition, he is charged with
the duty to ensure that the Directors receive in a timely manner
adequate, complete and reliable information in relation to the Group’s
affairs. The Chairman also encourages the Directors to actively
participate in and to make a full contribution to the Board so that the
Board functions effectively and acts in the best interest of the Company.

The CEO, Mr. Xu, has been focusing on strategic planning and assessing
merger and acquisition opportunities for the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws,
accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a specific term.
At the Board meetings and Board committee meetings where
constructive views and comments of the non-executive Directors are
given, the non-executive Directors provide independent judgement on
the issues relating to the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Hei Ming has been appointed as the company secretary
(“*Company Secretary”) of the Company with effect from 15 August
2017. The Company Secretary needs to support the Board by ensuring
a good information flow within the Board and that Board's policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary should report to the
Chairman of Board or the CEO on all related matters. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Company Secretary confirmed that she
had taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) on 9 October 1998 and formulated its written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules,
which have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee’s
members comprised three independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Leung (who also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Fung and Ms. Wong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of the members of
the Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Members

o=

Leung Man Kit (Chairman) RRE(FE)
Wong Sze Wing =HTA

Fung Chi Man, Henry RHEX

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company'’s financial control, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget)
and risk management as delegated by the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and engagement of
the external auditors for audit and non-audit services. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge
its duties.

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group
and discussed and reviewed financial reporting matters including the
interim and audited financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the engagement of the external auditors and
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control and
risk management systems and made recommendations to the Board.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of the external
auditors.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-
executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended 31 December 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2004 and has formulated
its written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code, which
have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, being Mr. Wu, and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Leung and Ms. Wong (who also acts as the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee). The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior
management of the Company according to its terms of reference,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for the loss or termination of their
office or appointment. The remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is determined by reference to factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance
based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is required to consult the Chairman of
the Board regarding the remuneration of the executive Directors, and
members of the Remuneration Committee have access to professional
advice on remuneration of executive Directors, if considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 3| December 2019 to review and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration package of individual executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee also reviewed and approved
the terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2019 and the attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee to the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

Wong Sze Wing (Chairman) =R (L E)
Wu Kebo 7R
Leung Man Kit REREGE
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Pursuant to the CG Code provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management of the Group (which include the
executive Directors and chief executive officers only) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FrMEE (B T)

< 1,000,000
1,000,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-10,000,000
> 10,000,001

Details of emoluments of each Director and chief executive officer are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements on page | 15 of this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 26 March 2012 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, being Mr. Wu (who also acts as the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee) and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Ms. Wong and Mr. Leung. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals qualified to become
Board members, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection, appointment or re-appointment of individuals
nominated for directorships, in particular the Chairman of the Board
and the chief executive. The Nomination Committee, in making such
selection and recommendation, will take into account factors such as
professional qualifications, experience, academic background, etc.

The members of the Nomination Committee have access to
independent professional advice on the nomination of executive
Directors, if considered necessary.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy™)
on 28 August 2013 to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
diversity at the Board level for and on behalf of the Board in term of
(including but not limited to) gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and such other qualities as
may be considered important by the Nomination Committee from time
to time. In identifying suitable candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee considers candidates on merit against
objective criteria and also the benefits of diversity on the Board. In
reviewing the Board composition, the Committee considers the benefits
of all aspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described
above, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills,
experience and diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy in a timely manner to ensure that the
Board Diversity Policy is effective.
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As at the date of this report, it is noted that 3 out of 8 Directors,
representing approximately 38%, are female. The Directors’ ages are
widely spread between 29 and 72. Regarding the educational and
professional background, the Board members have accounting, finance,
telecommunication and general business knowledge. It is therefore
believed that the Board has achieved diversity in terms of gender, age,
educational and professional background.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy™)
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures to
identify, select and recommend candidates for Directors.

Selection Criteria

When evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships, the
members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall consider
the following criteria:

(@)  Character and integrity;

(b)  Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company's business and
corporate strategies;

() The Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on
the Board,

(d)  Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments:

(e) In case of independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidates would be considered independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules;

(f)  In case of re-election, the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the Director to be reelected and the level of
participation and performance on the Board and the other criteria
set out in this section; and

(g)  Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company's business.
These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive

and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures BEEF

(@)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board identifies potential (@) REZEBER HEZFAEYEEBERE
candidates including but not limited to internal promotion, re- AN FEBBEIRRAIES  #AE - E
designation, referral by other member of the management and BEHR MK E RIS &SRR
external recruitment agencies and/or advisors. The Nomination HN o RELZERHBHTEREABERS
Committee then develops a short list of candidates and agrees on EERE A ERHES
proposed candidate(s);

(b)  Proposed candidate(s) will be asked to submit the necessary (b)) EFEEKEAGHEFERZIAZEAER B
personal information, biographical details, together with their EHBERERIn2AEE - EEEES
written consent to be appointed as a director. The Nomination APERIREARBBERB/DE ZFINER K
Committee may request candidates to provide additional S
information and documents, if considered necessary;

() The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal () RAZEGEANEEZENETEZERES
on appointment of new director and the personal information (or REAEAER (SAEEFIT) % - KRR bt
relevant details) of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate such ERFFZBREEAN  NETEREREAR
candidate(s) based on the criteria as set out above to determine BHREERBITEERG
whether such candidate(s) is qualified for directorship;

(d)  For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as  (d) HRERAAIRRASGERRIEZD2EES
a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the ZEMAL REZESHERR DM AERIFY
Nomination Committee shall evaluate such candidate based on REBIREN NWEETABREARGNE
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate BIRBITESBG
is qualified for directorship;

(e) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the (e) fHiBEFRHE -—FHALLBEREA - 124
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference ZEEARBANAFERUEREAZE
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each SRE (WER)REBERTFILHS
candidate (where applicable);

() The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a () REZESWEALHREZEEEE - A
meeting of the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual HBERER REZESARHLERHE
vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make EEZELEL AREBBEEARKRERE
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For BEREANDENS  RELZEGRELHRE
proposing candidates to stand for re-election or election at a EREFMHEETGER MEFGARES
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make BEERRRASERETHL2ERMKRTRD
nominations or recommendations for the Board's consideration et
and the Board shall make recommendations to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election or election of Director(s) at
the general meeting;

(g) In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by () AIRHEEFSREERRAG2ELEE
the Board to stand for election or re-election at a general BEZIREAZER BRRRFE—HE
meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will BR o 3 PR B R R R AR - FE (B
set out the names, brief biographies (including qualifications and BRRABEER) Byt BEEME LT
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and RAZEAERE  RAKROIATIRE 2 E1[]
any other information, as required pursuant to the applicable H &R &
laws, rules and regulations including the Listing Rules, of the
proposed candidates; and

(h)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to ~ (h) HREREAETARRAG BN ERE
its recommendation of candidates to stand for election or re- EFrzEFBEWz —VFEEH EFTSHARK
election at any general meeting. IRTEHE
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1k #&r:

Monitor and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and report to the Board when necessary. Also, the
Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; to consider and recommend to the Board the appointment and
re-election of the Directors; and to review the annual confirmation of
independence submitted by the independent non-executive Directors.

Members

K&

Wu Kebo (Chairman) hzK (F/E)

Leung Man Kit RREGE

Wong Sze Wing EATRR
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 3| December 2019, the fees paid/payable to the

EER®
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ERERNAEFGER - 25 REZE SRR
RABK(WEE)  MEREBBERTZER X

B mEMNAEREZE]  ARAESSEHT
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REZEENBE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—BLLF
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BEH MEHBLIFATEFRFRIZE LY

Meetings Attended/
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BHE SEK%
HEEE
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212

BB &
BE-F-NF+-A=+—ALFE BN/

Group's auditors, Messrs. KPMG, are set out as follows: NAEBZBMESHEAMEHR 2 BRI
T

Services Rendered Fee Paid/Payable
FriR {4t AR #5 Bt EAER
HK$'000

T

Audit and audit-related services B REZAEERS 2,428
Non-audit services FEBIZIRTES 918

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year with support from the finance
department of the Company and to ensure that the relevant accounting
policies are observed and the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants are complied with in the
preparation of such financial statements and to report the financial
affairs of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 76 to 82 of this
annual report.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and intemal control systems with the aim at
(i) safeguarding the Group's assets against unauthorised use or
disposition; (i) maintaining proper accounting records; and (iii) ensuring
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Group comprises a
well-established organisation structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk associated in failing to achieve certain business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group established an internal audit department at the end of the
year 2012 to assess its risk management and internal control systems,
formulate an impartial opinion on the systems, and report its findings to
the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Board and the senior
management concemned on a regular basis as well as following up on all
reports to ensure that all issues have been satisfactorily resolved.

Review of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of different systems.
The Group's risk management procedures include the following
elements:

. Identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's business;

. Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

. Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, confirmed that they had
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 3| December
2019, where some findings have been identified and reported to the
Board. The Board considers the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group effective and adequate throughout the year.

Regarding the disclosure of inside information, the Board had
implemented procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information so that potential inside information
can be promptly identified and escalated up for deciding whether an
announcement should be made in order to ensure compliance with the
continuous obligations under the Listing Rules and the statutory
obligation to disclose information under the SFO.

No material internal control deficiency that may affect the shareholders
of the Company has come to the attention of the Audit Committee or
the Board. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
complied with code provisions under C.2 on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix |4 to
the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy™).
Under the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider providing
Shareholders with interim or annual dividends, and declaring special
dividends from time to time. The Company intends to propose/declare
dividends after taking into consideration of, inter alia, the following
factors:

a. the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

b. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

c. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and the relevant
financial covenants;

d. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

e. the Group's expected cash flow requirements and future
expansion plans;

f. economic conditions of the Group, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other intemal and external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and

g. any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The recommendation of the payment of dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of annual dividend
for the year will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable
laws and regulations including the law of Bermuda and the Company'’s
Bye-laws. The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from
time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company can deposit a written request (stating the objects of the
meeting and signed by the shareholders concerned) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) for the transaction of any
business specified in the written request at the principal place of
business of the Company for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the request (after being verified to be valid)
proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders concerned, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may by themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
the deposit of the request.
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Shareholders, representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders as at
the date of deposit of the requisition, can by written requisition request
the Company to (a) give to the shareholders of the Company notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
removed at the next annual general meeting of the Company; and (b)
circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matters referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at any general meeting. If the requisition
requires a notice of a resolution, it must be deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company not less than 6 weeks before the
date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other requisition,
the written requisition must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company not less than | week before the date of the
general meeting.

If a shareholder of the Company, who is duly qualified to attend and
vote at the general meetings of the Company, intends to propose a
person other than a Director for election as a Director at any general
meeting, the shareholder concemed shall lodge with the principal place
of business of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary
(i) a written notice of his/her intention to propose that person for
election as a Director at the general meeting; and (i) a notice in writing
by that person of his/her willingness to be elected together with the
necessary information within the period commencing no earlier than
seven days after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company’s
website.

The shareholders of the Company should send their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The shareholders of the Company may send their other enquiries to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary or Company's
Corporate Communication Department at the principal place of
business of the Company situated at 18/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or via email address: in@goldenharvest.
com.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant
information to the shareholders of the Company in a timely manner.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between shareholders of the Company and the
Directors. The Directors and the external auditor will attend the annual
general meetings. The Directors will answer questions raised by the
shareholders on the performance of the Group.

Review of the general meeting proceedings is carried out by the Board
from time to time so as to ensure that the Company has followed the
best corporate governance practices. Notice of the general meeting
together with the circular setting out details of each of the proposed
resolutions (including procedures for demanding a poll where required
under the CG Code), voting procedures and other relevant information
are delivered to all the shareholders of the Company with sufficient
notice as required under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the
Company before the date appointed for the general meeting. At the
commencement of the general meeting, procedures for demanding
(where required) and conducting a poll are explained by the chairman
of the meeting to the shareholders of the Company and the votes cast
are properly counted and recorded by the scrutineer appointed by the
Company. Poll results of the general meeting are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the day of the
general meeting.

The Company’s website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) also contains an
“Investor Relations” section which enables the Company’s shareholders to
have timely access to the Company’s press release, financial reports,
announcements and circulars.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 3| December 2019, there has been no change
in the Company’'s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws. The
Company's memorandum of association and the Bye-laws are available on
the Company's website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are pleased to present the Group's 2019 environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report, which covers the period from | January to
31 December 2019. Since 2012, we have included a chapter in our
Annual Report that aims to provide investors and other stakeholders
with information about our policies, practices and performance in
material areas of ESG.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (“"HKEX").

The scope of this report remains the same as last year, covering both
our Hong Kong and Singapore operations. The scope of the report
does not cover our cinema business in Taiwan where we operate
through joint ventures in which we only have a minority stake, and our
office in Japan, the activities of which are not material to our business
operations. Our operations in Mainland China are also excluded, as our
clubhouse in Beijing only commenced operations in the last quarter of
the year and the business in Jiangyin is still under preparation. We aim
to report on our Mainland China businesses once they become fully
operational.

Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data disclosed for Hong
Kong covers 8 multiplex cinemas (including | newly opened cinema at
GH V Walk, and GH Citywalk, which closed on | September), our
corporate offices (we added an additional office location in the
reporting year), a staff apartment, a warehouse and Jod de Rolls café.
The data for Singapore covers 14 multiplex cinemas (including | newly
opened cinema during the reporting period) and our corporate office.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT REVIEW AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Board is responsible for reviewing the risks and externalities that
have the potential to impact our business, including those related to
ESG. Every year, the Board and senior management review the Group's
ESG performance, the effectiveness of our management approach and
approve the ESG Report. When determining the most material ESG
topics, we make reference to the Materiality Principle of the Global
Reporting Initiative (“GRI"). The GRI defines material topics as topics
that: (a) reflect the organisation’s significant impacts, or (b) substantively
influence the assessments and decisions of stakeholders.

In addition to calls, emails and meetings with key individuals throughout
our daily work, we have various channels to communicate with our
stakeholders, including a customer feedback email, social media
platforms, traditional media coverage, employee surveys, and internal
control reports. We seek to build open relationships with our
employees, customers and business partners, and encourage them to
share their feedback or concerns with us so that we can respond in a
timely manner. Effective communication is critical to the success of our
business.
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We regularly review stakeholder feedback to understand what matters
most to individuals and organisations that could influence our business
success. Since 2016, the Group has engaged an independent
sustainability expert to review stakeholder feedback received via these
channels and advise on material topics to be covered in this ESG
Report. This year, we also conducted an industry benchmarking exercise

to review the topics material to our industry.

Based on the analysis of the stakeholder feedback and our business
impacts, we have identified the following 9 material Aspects within the
HKEX ESG Reporting Guide that are disclosed in this report. These

issues have been validated by the Group's senior management.

SUBJECT AREA CATEGORY

TEEE 5l

Environment

B

Social Employment and Labour Practices
te TEfR K 85 T#ER

Operating Practices
ZIEER

Community

a2
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3. Employment
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7. Product Responsibility
EmAl

8. Anti-corruption
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9. Community Investment
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group's business, by nature, does not have a large impact on the
natural environment. Our most material impacts are the use of
electricity and water, waste generation and carbon emissions. Most of
our cinemas are located inside buildings that are operated by third party
property management companies, and therefore the Group does not
have operational control of centralised services such as air conditioning,
waste collection and, in Hong Kong, water usage. This makes it difficult
to gather performance data for these metrics.

We endeavour to track our performance for areas where we do have
operational control and ensure compliance with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. We continue to optimise our
environmental performance through facilities and process
improvements, and by encouraging our staff and customers to adopt
environmentally friendly behaviour. Using natural resources responsibly
is not only the right thing to do, it often results in improved efficiency
and cost savings, which benefit our bottom line.

Key Performance Metrics (Hong Kong)

RIREME

FE L AEENEBTISHAARARFELEEAY
B BB ROERATZERBERRAK  ELEY
&Eﬁﬁtﬁﬂl c HPIARMA XML NAE =T NEE

NEZENRKEAR - Bt AEEHF KRG
(ZID =38 BRI R BE R RO S
It BB DAL B HE R SR B B

BPBOEMBR PGS L EEtRNSBEER I
BRESTEERRBEEARIOES - REBERSE
R SO S A R B AP B T B P REUR
RECEAMRARMERRE T EANE - BEEIHE
REARBRTEZIERME  BEIRAESICER
EREARA - BFIRBAPIRERFIH -

MBI ER(FE)

Electricity consumption KWh

MEE FTRE
Electricity intensity' KWh/m?
FEEE FRES P K
Water consumption? m’

FEKE? AV

Water intensity? m3/m?

FKEE? SR FTK

2,803,999 2,715,980 2,929,181
140 152 183

1,927 2,042 10,905
0.10 0.1 0.68

Carbon emissions*

BB BR

Scope | — Direct® tonnes COqe 14 22 26
®E —HB R —SULIREE

Scope 2 — Indirect® tonnes CO,e 1,436 1,417 1611
HE2 — fHEe AW _SLiRE S

Carbon emissions intensity (Scope | & 2) tonnes CO,e/m? 0.07 0.08 0.10
mEmmEE (BE&2) RE—SfLmEE,FHK

Other air emissions’

H R

NO, g 20,261 19,651 21,700
ity I

SO g 82 126 140
mety I

PM emissions g 1,904 1,772 1,952
FERLHERL I

Used cooking oil recycled®

O R R e

F42019

litres 1,160

AF

ERFEARIREE

936

2,592
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Key Performance Metrics (Singapore)

Electricity consumption kWh

FEEE F R
Electricity intensity” kKWh/m?
REZE TRE,FIK
Water consumption'” m?

FokE" STk

Water intensity"' m?/m?
FEKREE! SRS FE TR

F@RMER (i)

10,228,457 9,543,782
194 188

31,985 38,259
0.61 0.75

Carbon emissions

182954

Scope 2 — Indirect'? tonnes CO,e
FOE2 — A" NME SR E
Carbon emissions intensity (Scope 2 only) tonnes CO,e/m?
xpEmEmE (EREBE2) R —E(CHREE

| Electricity intensity is the total electricity consumed in kilowatt-hours
(“kWh") per unit of gross floor area (“GFA") in square metres of our
premises in Hong Kong (including 8 cinemas, 2 corporate offices, a staff
apartment, a warehouse and a café).

N

Water consumption data is only available for 5 locations in Hong Kong,
including Stagk, GH Citywalk (closed on | September 2019), GH
Whampoa, GH Fanling and The Sky.

w

Water intensity is the total volume of freshwater consumed in cubic
metres divided by the total GFA for the 5 locations where water data is
available.

o~

Carbon emissions are generated by the use of electricity in all our
operations (Scope 2) and the use of fuel of our fleet (Scope I), which
consists of two vehicles in Hong Kong. All our sites use central air
conditioning. The Group does not have data for, nor operational control
over, the consumption and selection of refrigerants used in air
conditioning, and therefore emissions from refrigerants are not included in
the scope of this calculation.

vl

The calculation for vehicle emissions (Scope 1) uses emission factors
provided in HKEX's toolkit for ESG reporting.

o

The calculation of Scope 2 emissions uses emission factors found in the
sustainability reports of our utility providers: CLP (2019 report) and Hong
Kong Electric (2018 report).

~

Other air emissions, including nitrogen oxides (“NOx") sulphur oxides
("SOx"), and particulate matter (“PM"), are generated from the
combustion of fuel by our fleet.

[oe)

The used cooking oil is generated by the Sky cinema and Jod de Rolls
café. No other operations generate used cooking oil.

O

Electricity intensity is the total electricity consumed in kWh per GFA in
square metres of all of our premises in Singapore (including 14 cinemas
and our corporate office).
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10 Water data is available for all locations in Singapore, but for our new
cinema in Funan, data is only available from July 2019.

I Water intensity is the total volume of freshwater consumed in cubic
metres divided by the total GFA for all 14 locations in Singapore.

12 Scope 2 emissions conversion factor for electricity in killowat to CO,
equivalent ("CO,e") taken from the Source: Singapore Energy Statistics
2019, Energy Market Authority; refer to “2018 Average Operating
Margin”.

Promoting Energy Efficiency

Energy use is the most material environmental impact of the Group.
We need electricity to power the lights, air conditioning and projection
equipment in our cinemas, as well as for the daily operation of our
corporate offices, warehouse and café.

Air conditioning is a major source of our electricity consumption. To
achieve the best viewing quality, our cinemas must maintain an optimal
indoor environment by controlling the temperature, humidity and air
quality. As far as possible, the Group seeks to improve the energy
efficiency of air conditioning units in our cinemas.

Where available and cost-effective alternatives exist, we preferentially
select energy saving equipment such as LED lights and laser projectors
for our Singapore operations. We can also encourage our employees to
practice energy saving behaviour, such as turning off non-essential
lighting and other equipment when not in use.

Reducing Carbon and Other Air Emissions

The Group generates Scope | (or direct) greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions from fuel combustion by our company owned vehicles, and
Scope 2 (or energy indirect) GHG emissions associated with the
electricity we consume.

In Hong Kong, the Group owns and operates two vehicles: one private
car that runs on petrol, and one diesel-powered light goods vehicle. The
combustion of fuel in these vehicle engines also generates other air
emissions such as nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides, and particulate
matter, which can contribute to air pollution.

Our Scope 2 emissions constitute our most significant impact on climate
change. As these emissions are linked to electricity consumption, efforts
to improve our energy efficiency will help to drive down our GHG
emissions.

The Group is testing innovative ways to electronically deliver movies,
which not only reduces carbon emissions from transportation and
product delivery, it can also reduce the need for physical storage space
and the associated electricity consumption of our warehouses.
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Responsible Use of Resources

The Group is committed to responsible consumption and waste
reduction. Other than electricity, other resources we use in reasonably
significant quantities include water, paper and plastic. We promote
reduction of waste at source and recycling to prevent valuable resources
from ending up in landfills (Hong Kong) and from incineration
(Singapore). Over the last few years, we have implemented the
following initiatives across our Hong Kong and Singapore operations to
promote responsible use of resources:

Water:

. We encourage our employees and patrons to use less water by
posting reminders in toilets and office pantries

Paper:
. We promote double-sided printing in our offices
. In Hong Kong, we deliver internal communications digitally

through our company intranet

. In Hong Kong, we promote new movies on our online platforms
rather than posting paper posters

. In Singapore, we encourage e-payments through our mobile
ticketing service

Plastics:

. We encourage customers to bring their own 3D glasses, or, if
using ours, to retum them to use so they can be reused

Most of the waste generated in our cinemas and offices are disposed of
via central waste collection channels managed by the mall or office
building in which our facilities are located, and therefore it is difficult to
track the total quantity of general waste generated by the Group.
Another challenge is that some of the waste collected at our cinemas
may be brought in by our customers or be packaged items, which
means we are not able to fully control waste reduction.

In Hong Kong, where we operate Jod de Rolls Café and have some
food preparation at the sky cinema, we engage a qualified third-party to
collect and recycle our used cooking oil. The cooking oil collected is
used to produce biodiesel and biofuels, which can be used as a cleaner,
greener alternative to fossil fuels for transportation and in industry.

A municipal solid waste changing scheme has been under consideration
by the Hong Kong SAR Government for some time. The proposed
charging models include charging by volume, by mandating the purchase
of designated garbage bags, or charging by weight. Should this scheme
come into effect it would lead to unforeseen costs for the business. It
will be important for the Group to find ways to monitor and manage
the waste generated by its operations. We continue to explore ways to
increase the recycling rate of disposables consumed during customers’
visits to our cinemas. In 2017, we communicated with waste contractors
of different operations and cinemas to understand how general waste is
handled.
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In the future, we will also try to keep better track of our suppliers’
environmental performance and may consider incorporating
environmental performance related requirements in the tenders and
contracts to promote sustainability in our value chain.

PEOPLE RESPONSIBILITY

Caring for Our People

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 484 full time employees. It is
our aim that each of our employees feel respected, valued and safe
when coming to work.

Our Human Resources team seeks to hire people who are excited to
work in the movie industry. To attract and retain the right candidates,
our Group provides competitive remuneration and benefits packages
that include medical insurance, contributions to retirement schemes and
discretionary bonuses are provided to eligible staff based on
performance reviews that are periodically conducted with all full-time
staff.

Our employees come from a range of backgrounds, experience levels
and perspectives, allowing us to better meet the needs of an equally
diverse customer base. We take a zero-tolerance approach to
discrimination and harassment of job applicants or employees and
maintain a system that treats everyone fairly and recognises and rewards
based on individual merit and performance.

Details of remuneration and benefits, as well as our anti-discrimination
practices can be found in the Employee Handbook, which each staff
member receives upon commencement of their employment.

Development and Training

We promote a culture of learning, providing the training and
development opportunities to set employees up for success. Frontline
employees receive induction training of all procedures and skills needed
to feel job ready.

Through the year, we also offer education and training opportunities
deemed essential for continued professional development. A range of
courses are available as organised by our in-house and external training
providers, as well as education subsidies and examination leave.

Health and Safety

We are guided by our commitment: "‘Safety Comes First,” determined
to keep employees and customers safe in our locations of operation. In
our cinemas, we emphasise the importance of fire safety, where each
site is maintained at the highest standards and inspections are conducted
regularly. Frontline employees receive fire safety training so that, in case
of an emergency, they are prepared to act. For our office employees,
occupational health and safety is reinforced through guidelines that help
raise awareness of potential hazards in the workplace, and how to
minimise these risks.
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Employee Well-being

We believe in providing enjoyable experiences to all moviegoers. As
our frontline employees are part of this overall service, we take extra
steps to ensure their own well-being is maintained through an enjoyable
work environment. We promote a work-life balance and organise
various leisure activities to increase teambuilding to enhance morale
throughout the year.

OPERATING PRACTICES & PRODUCT
RESPONSIBILITY

Service Excellence

Our mission is to provide superior entertainment experiences that
excite and delight our customers. Whether it is the movies we produce
ourselves, or those we select to show in our cinemas, our customers
expect the best movies, viewed in the highest quality, with responsible
and diverse options to cater to different tastes. Our professional
sourcing team actively seeks different genres, from blockbusters to
cultural programmes, musicals and sporting events.

The Group continues to invest in new technologies such as
TechnoMotion Chairs, D-Box, Dolby and AURO sound systems,
BARCO Laser projectors and IMAX® screens to provide our audiences
with a world-class viewing experience.

As we serve food and beverages in our cinemas, we take precautions to
ensure food safety. We require all employees that handle food to
attend courses on food handling so that they are aware of the risks and
how to mitigate them. In Hong Kong our staff attend courses organised
by the Integrated Vocational Education Centre on food hygiene
management, and in Singapore, all staff are required by the National
Environment Agency to obtain a food hygiene certificate before they
can handle food.

Protection of Data Privacy

We implement stringent data protection mechanisms to ensure the
personal information of our customers and members remains secure.
Staff responsible for handling private data follow clear guidelines and are
regularly reminded of personal data protection measures and
regulations. The Group also delivers regular workshops to brush up the
skills of customer facing staff.

To protect customer data privacy when processing online payments for

movie tickets and using our online membership system, we have strict
data protection mechanisms in place.
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Anti-Corruption

Integrity and accountability are the cornerstones of our business. We
are conscious of, and thus constantly monitor, risks to business ethics in
our operating environments by implementing a strong internal control
framework and policies. Our Audit Committee and senior management
also hold tight to the principle of zero-tolerance on corruption and
fraud. Their commitment is reflected in our policy on the subject, as
well as within many of our operational procedures.

In 2019, no incidents of corruption have been identified or reported.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Our community investment initiatives focus on ways in which we can
leverage our core competencies and resources to spread the joy of
movies and help underserved people. Every vear, the Group partners
with different charitable organisations to organise various activities. This
year, we participated in the Mid-Autumn Charity Sales event in Hong
Kong organised by Orbis, which aimed to support and celebrate the
festival with visually impaired people. A total of 103 boxes of different
editions of charity mooncakes were purchased for our staff in support
of the event. In 2019, we continued to work with community partners
to organise movie screenings . Partnering with Life Workshop, an NGO
helping the underprivileged children, we invited more than 100 students
and their parents to a screening of the new Doraemon movie 2019.

In Singapore, through our GV Cares initiative, we partnered with Reach
Community Services Society and Make-A-Wish Foundation to offer free
screening activities in 2019. We also accepted applications from
Morning Star Community Service, Hwa Chong Institution and Sage
Counselling Centre to use the big screens at selected cinemas for
fundraising screenings and free screenings for their beneficiaries, such as
the Singapore Children’s Society. Our focus remains to support
underprivileged children, low income families, the elderly and film
schools. The value of our in-kind sponsorships in 2019 was SGD7,491
(about HK$40,690).

To further promote social inclusion and address the evolving needs in

the society, we will continue to support and partner with different
community partners.
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Subject areas & aspects

FRERKET

Disclosures

Contents reference/Description

WA RS

A. Environmental
A RE

Al Emissions

Al B

General disclosure information

—REEEN

KPI'Al.l The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

RARERUEIR ALl BERTE SR R A RIHF
FHEIE

KPI' Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total
and, where appropriate intensity

FIRENIER A2 B EREEINE R
(HEm) 22 -

KPI'Al.3 Total hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity.
BREBIERAI3 MEL B ZEEYE
BR(WER) ZE -

KPI'Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
and, where appropriate, intensity.

RAREMIEIR A4 TELEEZEZYE
BERIEH) ZE

KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

RABAE MUIEIR ALLS F 2L Bl 1K B 1 2 B 1R
W RATIFHR

KPI' Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

RIS RIRIR AL MR & RAEE
FEZ Y IE ~ AL E L B AVIE I K AT
RECR -
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Environmental Responsibility section

RESEES

Key Performance Metrics (Hong Kong);
Key Performance Metrics (Singapore)
RARIAMIEIR (BE)

RABIR ISR (Fni)

Not a material issue for the Group.

WHAEBENEAZSE °

Data currently not available except for waste
cooking oil in Key Performance Metrics (Hong
Kong)
MREARERUIER(BB)TEERAMI -
ERIRIZ:TIECE ¢

Reducing Carbon and Other Air Emissions

R DB DR L A R SR IR

Responsible Use of Resources

NEBEEREERER
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Subject areas & aspects

TRERKEM

Disclosures

BERER

Contents reference/Description

WA RSt

A2 Use of Resources

A2 ERER

A3 The Environment and
Natural Resources

A3 BRERRRER

F3572019

General disclosure information

—REEER

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and intensity
BREMIERAL KHE 5 e B &
KRR E REE o

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and
intensity

BRBE VISR A2 BFEKERZE »

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved

RSB RIEIR A2.3 #k BE IR (L F Az &t
ZIRATIGHR -

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
RAR A8 WU 1R A2.4 14 2t SR ERGE FR 7K R _E
Al B - AR KMz
RETiGHR -

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

BARE IR A2S R an AT BT H
HIAEE (AW E) K (WE ) B EE
fz5E -

General disclosure information
—RIFEER

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

BASRAERUEIR A3l JH i # 75)5 B B IR I%
RARERNEAZERERNERER
AR &R TTE) -

Environmental Responsibility section
BRREAEMH

Key Performance Metrics (Hong Kong);
Key Performance Metrics (Singapore)
RRAE IR (BE)

A AR R AR RT3t

Promoting Energy Efficiency

TR IR &S

Water is not a material environmental impact
of the Group. There is no indication that
water efficiency is a concem.

K FEAEE 2 ERIRBRE
BRETAKSEFERT -

- IR iEAE

Not a material issue for the Group, as we do
not manufacture or produce packaging
materials.

AREEYEEEREEBRME - Eiledf
FAREENERFEE

Environmental Responsibility section
BREBEEMH

After reviewing our environmental
performance and stakeholder feedback, we
confirm that our business activities do not
have significant adverse impacts on the
environment. Our commitments and measures
to reducing our environmental footprint are
detailed in the Environmental Responsibility
section.
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Subject areas & aspects

FREBREER

Disclosures

BEER

Contents reference/Description

RAERS|

B. Social
B.#4E

Employment and
labour practices

EER s TES

Bl Employment
Bl {E{E

B2 Health and Safety
B2 REREZE

B3 Development and
Training

B3 &R KIEII

B4 Labour standards

B4 & T %8|

Operating practices

&EE

B5 Supply chain
management

B5 B ER

B6 Product responsibility
B6 EmEIE

B7 Anti-corruption

B7 RES

Community

HE

B8 Community
investment

B8 HEiRE

General disclosure information

—RRIFEER

General disclosure information

— R EER
General disclosure information
—R R E R

General disclosure information

—REEEH

General disclosure information
—RRIEEEE R

General disclosure information

—REEER

General disclosure information

—RIEER

General disclosure information

—REER
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Caring for Our People
EREEEL

Health and Safety
EEEEEE

Development and Training
BERTES
Not a material issue for the Group.

Given our business nature and locations of
operation, the risk of child labour and forced
labour in our business is low, and therefore we
do not consider “Labour Practices” to be a
material concem. The Group ensures compliance
with all relevant labour laws governing minimum
working age in the markets in which it operates.
Forced labour is strictly prohibited.

WIHAEBHERZEE -

PERR I E TSI B J 2@ 2 - FPiay
EERBRHE T REES THRBERE -
FIE BT T R A4 TR AEAFE -
REFEERETRCEHET S HBE
ERIE T IEFE BT AR T A0 - B
FEZE L RAST o

Responsible Use of Resources
NaEFEEERER

Service Excellence; Protection of Data Privacy

SRR : RIEFLE

Anti-Corruption
RES

Community Investment

HERE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHREE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 3|
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company which is a leading
integrated film entertainment company in the markets where the
principal activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video
distribution, film exhibition and the provision of advertising and
consultancy services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore and film and
television programmes production in Hong Kong and Mainland China. In
addition, the Group has recently expanded into the arenas of live show
performances, club house business and entertainment centre business.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 14 to 24 of this
Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this Directors' Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 3| December 2019
are set out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 149.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 3| December 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note
I I to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

On 14 January 2013, Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment
Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
announced to acquire all that 24th Floor, together with car parking
spaces nos. 421, 422 & 423 on 4th Floor, AXA Centre, |51 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the "“Property”). AXA Centre is
subsequently renamed as the Capital Centre.

On 4 September 2019, there was an intra-group property transfer in
respect of the Property happened between Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment Company Limited (the “Transferor”) and Golden
Properties (Pacific) Limited (the “Transferee”), which both the
Transferor and Transferee are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. During the year, the Property was owned by the Company
via the wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Details of the Property are set out in note | | to the financial statements
on pages | |7 to 121 of this annual report.
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BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company's share capital are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or the company laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RITEM
AEEN =T AFTZA=+—AZRITER
TSB43R M 220

g
ARRIBAFEHR BRI 24 -

BABEERE

ARR 2 A AR ERIE R AE DL WA E S
WERZAE  RERRAVARLOIARERES
3R -

IFUBENREE

Consolidated income statement FEMER

Revenue g 1,060,842 1,050,972 1,006,599 1,291,819 1,277,132

Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELRET (58) (4,062) 83661 2548144 (68153  (186179)

Income tax (expense)/credit FER (%), B8 (31,054) BT (309831) 2916 496|

Profit(loss) for the year REEER/ (BR) (35,116) 52290 2238313 (65237)  (181218)

Attributable to: T AL :

— Equity holders of the Company — ARTRERAEA (35,092) 52529 2,242,136 (59,078) (180471

— Non-controlling interests — FEERRER (24) (239) (3823) (6159) (747)
(35,116) 5229 2238313 (65237) (181219
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

IFUBERREE

Consolidated statement GEBBRAER

of financial position
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,481,273 - - - -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 404,529 1,031,644 1,026,222 245,789 1,519,528
Interests in joint ventures REENE IR 133,243 145933 142937 201,122 263,290
Interests in associates NIEE DB 7 R - - - - [1,269
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE - - - 6,048 6,372
Other receivables, deposits and HibEWZIE e Kk

prepayments BRATE 46,704 40,058 40,509 18,821 96,652
Intangible assets BREE 525,397 523,079 525,625 82414 83014
Goodwill RS 661,582 656,609 658,001 57233 75,203
Deferred tax assets EERIEAE 4,824 - - 6,160 44,001
Non-current portion of pledged BEARITERL

bank deposits FEENERES 137,000 137,000 137,000 20,000 33,570
Current assets MBEE 1,327,603 1,491,863 2,146,475 2518278 732,294
Total assets BELE 4,722,155 4,026,186 4,676,769 3,155,865 2,865,193
Current liabilities REAE 792,887 647,190 784,169 974334 885,250
Non-current portion of bank loans RITERZ IENERL S 805,907 1,024,498 875,140 188,300 336977
Non-current portion of convertible  A[# &% 2 B HEH S

bonds - - - 174,067 -
Non-current portion of RAHERERZ

obligations under finance lease FEENHIE - - - 269 37,332
Other financial liabilities Hudmas - - - 219389 -
Non-current portion of lease liabilities & & &2 JERNEZH D 790,497 - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE 176,931 173,383 174,778 9471 12419
Total liabilities BERE 2,566,222 1,845,071 1,834,087 1,565,830 1271978
Net assets BEZRE 2,155,933 2,181,115 2,842,682 1,590,035 1593215
Non-controlling interests eSS (559) (545) (331) 58433 13,378

F42019

BREARRLE (RE)BERAF

55



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEWMES

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2019 are set out in note
24 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, representing retained profits,
amounted to HK$17,793,000 (2018: HK$20,589,000). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, contributed surplus and capital
redemption reserve in an aggregate amount of HK$1,059,279,000
(2018: HK$1,059,279,000), as at 31 December 2019, may be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company in certain circumstances prescribed
by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman & Executive Director
Wu Kebo

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pei Sen

Mr. Mao Yimin (resigned on 31 October 2019)
Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona

Ms. Wu Keyan (resigned on 9 September 2019)
Ms. Go Misaki (appointed on 9 September 2019)
Mr. Peng Bolun (appointed on 9 September 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Man Kit
Wong Sze Wing
Fung Chi Man, Henry

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, Ms.
Go Misaki and Mr. Peng Bolun who were appointed as executive
Directors of the Company with effect from 9 September 2019, all of
whom to fill casual vacancies or as an addition to the Board, shall
respectively hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his or her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.

In accordance with clauses 87(1) and (2) of the Company's Bye-Laws,
Mr. Leung Man Kit and Ms. Wong Sze Wing will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and all of them, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Biographical details of the Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group are set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year. The
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate and sufficient
insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors
and officers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during the
year ended 3| December 2019. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has repurchase or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the non-adjusting events after the reporting period are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Interests in shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share
capital of the Company (the “Shares’’), underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company

EERRSITHRAERKND - HE
RIDHEER 2 EHERAR

R-ZZB—AE+-_A=+—8 ARFAEEAES
TTERABRAR G ST AAEEZE (TEREHFR
HEEN ([EHREEEG ) EXVER) 2 &Hm - 18
RO EEED  BEARRAREESRGE
1EBISE XV EBEE 352167 B 2 B o MATacsk - siiRiE
TR R FTEAZEST BB A AN RQ 7] B P 2 A
=R BEET

REAFERTRADNFREE.10ET
gggﬂﬂﬁ]) C ELTFIZHEMEG R REE

Name of Director/

Chief Executive Number of
EZ/BSTHAE  Capacity Note Shares
e 5% Hist RG#E
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled corporations / 1723894068 (L)
i REFEER
Beneficial owner | 271824429 (L)
EaEA
Li Pei Sen Beneficial owner 200,000 (L)
FER EaEA
Leung Man Kit Beneficial owner 370,000 (L)
RRE EaEA
Wong Sze Wing Beneficial owner 170,000 (L)
L EREAA
* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in

issue (ie. 2,799,669,050 Shares) as at 31 December 2019.
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* Approximate

percentage

of Shares and

underlying Shares

in the issued share

Total capital of the

number of Company

Number of Shares and R R AR
underlying  underlying Shares ROARAH
Shares R R ERITRAH
RERGHE HERGAR  FAEBOEIL
- 723,894,068 (L) 61.57%

- 271824429 (1) 9.71%

- 200,000 (L) 001%

- 370,000 (L) 001%

- 170,000 (L) 001%

ZEADIETIRER=-ZF—NF+=-A=+—HE
BT 4B 2L (12,799,669,050 B AR 17) iTiat & -
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Note:

I By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to be interested in a total of
1,723,894,068 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by
Skyera Intemational Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu); (ii)
408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway Enterprises Limited (a
company wholly owned by Mr. Wu); (iii) 129,666,667 Shares were held
by Noble Biz International Limited (a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Wu); (iv) 565,719,948 Shares were held by Orange Sky Entertainment
Group (International) Holding Company Limited (a company which is
80% owned by Mr. Wu); and (v) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber
International Limited (a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu).

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 271,824,429 Shares as at 3|
December 2019 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

Abbreviation:
"L stands for long position

Save as disclosed above and save for the disclosure referred to under
““Share Option Schemes" set out below and in note 24 to the financial
statements on pages 136 to 139 of this annual report, as at 3|
December 2019, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures” above and “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2019 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouses or children under |18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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2009 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the 2009 Share Option Scheme for
the purpose of enabling the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or
provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of
the 2009 Share Option Scheme include the Directors and other
employees of the Group, consultants or advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, service providers, agents, customers and
business partners of the Group. The 2009 Share Option Scheme
became effective on || November 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of 10
years from that date. On 10 November 2019, the 2009 Share
Option Scheme was expired.

Each grant of the share options to a connected person of the
Company, or any of their associates, must be approved by all of
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding the
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
option). In addition, any grant of the share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates which would result
in the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of the
offer and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any |2-month period up to and including the date of the
grant, shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with voting to be taken by way of a
poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2009
Share Option Scheme shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for such period as determined by
the Board, which period shall not be more than 30 days from the
day of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$ ! by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, the expiry date of such
period not to exceed 10 years from the date of the offer. Save as
determined by the Directors and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant share option, there is no general
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised.

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares
on the exercise of a share option is determinable by the
Directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share
option; (i) the average closing price per Share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if
any) must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issue as
at || November 2009, being the date of adoption of the 2009
Share Option Scheme. This limit was last refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on |5 May 2012 in accordance with the
provisions of the Listing Rules so that the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
268,120,424 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of passing the relevant resolution on |5 May 2012. In
addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any |2-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of such limit (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any |2-month period up to
and including the date of grant of such share option shall be
separately approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share
option outstanding under the Scheme. No share option was
granted to or exercised by any Directors or chief executives of
the Company or employees of the Group or other participants
nor cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Share options granted or to be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at the shareholders’ meetings.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the disclosure under the headings “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and save as detailed in
note 28 to the financial statements on page |46 of this annual report,
none of the Directors had any material interests, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors had an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the 2009 Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year ended 3| December 2019.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's purchases from
its largest supplier and its five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 7.55% and 13.85%, respectively, of the Group’s total
purchases.

The Group's sales to its largest customer and its five largest customers
accounted for approximately 0.27% and 1.06%, respectively, of the
Group's total sales during the same period.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the
shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2019, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had the following interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity Note Shares
BREE/ A8 &% Wizt RO#E
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled | 723,894,068 (L)
ek corporations
REEERES
Beneficial owner / 271,824,429 (L)
EEHAA
Skyera Intemational Limited Beneficial owner 2 439,791,463 (L)
(“Skyera") BB
Mainway Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 3 408,715990 (L)
(*Mainway") ERBBA
Noble Biz International Beneficial owner 4 129,666,667 (L)
Limited (“Noble Biz") ERBBA
Cyber International Limited Beneficial owner 5 180,000,000 (L)
(“Cyber") EaBEEA
Orange Sky Entertainment Beneficial owner 6 565,719,948 (L)
Group (International) ERBEA
Holding Company Limited
("OSEG")
BRREEE (BR) 2K
BRAR(EX])
62 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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*Approximate
percentage of

Shares and

underlying Shares

in the issued

share capital of

Total number  the Company

of Shares and * [ {3 & 1H B At £

Number of underlying Shares RARARBET
underlying Shares R RAEE R TG
HBRRGHBE ROAR BOBAL
- ,723,894,068 (L) 61.57%

- 271824429 (1) 9.71%

- 439,791,463 (L) 15.71%

- 408,715990 (L) 14.60%

- 129,666,667 (L) 4.63%

- 180,000,000 (L) 643%

- 565,719,948 (L) 2021%
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* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in
issue (ie. 2,799,669,050 Shares) as at 31 December 2019.

Notes:

(1) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to have interest in a total of
1,723,894,068 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by
Skyera; (i) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway; (iii) 129,666,667
Shares were held by Noble Biz; (iv) 565,719,948 Shares were held by
OSEG,; and (v) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber.

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 271,824,429 Shares as at 31
December 2019 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

(2)  Skyera is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who s also a director of
Skyera.

(3)  Mainway is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director
of Mainway.

(4)  Noble Biz is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu who is also a director
of Noble Biz.

(5)  Cyberis a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu.

(6) OSEG (a company 80% owned by Mr. Wu) was interested in
565,719,948 Shares. Mr. Wu is a director of OSEG and Mr. Li Pei Sen is
the associate Chairman of OSEG.

Abbreviation:

"“L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2019, no other person had
an interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Termination of Jiangyin Sale and Purchase
Agreement

On 29 August 2018, Jiangyin Orange Sky Golden Harvest Liuliu
Enterprise Management Co,, Ltd. (LRERFZR NN EEE
BBRAF]) (formerly known as Jiangyin Orange Sky Golden
Harvest Liuliu Property Co., Ltd (LERERZARSEEBR
AA)) (the “Purchaser” or “OSGH Liuliu Enterprise”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Jiangyin Orange
Land Cinema Development Management Co., Ltd. (TRE#EHI 5
P EE AR AR (the “Seller” or “Jiangyin Orange Land")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Jiangyin Sale
and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Seller
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to acquire the properties situated at Wuxing South Road,
Xiagang Street, Jiangyin, China and west to Xiadong Road (7
TlemESHEREKE - EREAR), which comprises of
(i) the complex with two buildings with 7 and || floors
respectively and the underground area with 2 floors for
commercial, hotel and cinema use with total gross floor area of
approximately 93,137.68 square meters and (ii) the land use
rights of land with total site area of approximately 23,334 square
meters (the "“Target Properties”), at a total consideration of
RMB560 million (“*Acquisition”). On the same day, Mr. Wu Kebo
as the guarantor entered into the guarantee (“Guarantee”) to
guarantee the due performance of the Seller of its obligations
under the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement.

As at the date of the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
Seller was owned as 75% by Orange Sky Land Holdings Company
Limited (f8RHIZAR AR A F]) (“Orange Sky Land”) and 25%
by Beijing Orange Land Cinema Investment Management
Company Limited, Gt &M ic & B IR BR A A] (“Beijing
Orange Land”). Orange Sky Land was indirect wholly-owned by
Mr. Wu Kebo. Beijing Orange Land was owned as to 80% by
Beijing Orange Sky Cinema Investment Management Company
Limited At BRI EBIRER AT ("Beijing Orange
Sky"), which was in tum owned as to 99% by Mr. Wu Kebo and
19% by Ms. Wu Keyan. Mr. Wu Kebo was the Director and
controlling Shareholder of the Company. Ms. Wu Keyan, the
Director of the Company, was the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo.
Accordingly, the Seller, being the associate of Mr. Wu Kebo and
Ms. Wu Keyan, was a connected person of the Company and the
Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Guarantee and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Seller
shall complete the primary registration within 7 months of the
date of the signing of the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement
(i.e. by 28 March 2019).

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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(b)

HES

The Purchaser had been notified by the Seller that the primary
registration could not be completed by 28 March 2019 due to a
change in the primary registration requirements as requested by
the relevant registration authorities in the PRC. Due to this
change of circumstance, the Board was of the view that the
Purchaser should not continue to wait for the completion of the
Acquisition whilst the date of completion of the primary
registration remained uncertain. The Purchaser had therefore
notified the Seller on 8 March 2019 of its intention to terminate
the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Termination
Request”) by way of a written notice (the “Termination Notice™).

Pursuant to the Termination Notice, the Purchaser requested the
Seller to refund the deposit, being 10% of the consideration
amounting to RMB56 million, to the Purchaser within 6 months
from the date of the termination (the “Refund Arrangement”).
On the same day, the Seller acknowledged and confirmed the
Termination Request and the Refund Arrangement by signing the
Termination Notice. As a result, the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase
Agreement was terminated with immediate effect on 8 March
2019 and the Acquisition will not proceed.

Cinema and Hotel Lease Agreements

On 28 June 2019, OSGH Liuliu Enterprise, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, (the “Tenant”) entered into
the a cinema lease agreement (the “Cinema Lease Agreement”)
and a hotel lease agreement (the “Hotel Lease Agreement”) with
Jiangyin Orange Land (the “Landlord"), a company established in
the PRC with limited liability, in respect of leasing of cinema
premises situated at floor 5, 6 and 7 of the building units 597 and
599 at Wuxing Road, Xiagang Street, Jiangyin, PRC (F B Tf&
EBAB R EK), with a total gross floor area of approximately
17,124.49 square meters (the “Cinema Premises”) and hotel
premises situated at Orange Sky Land Square One, Jiangyin, PRC*
(REDIRRMERHES ), with a total gross floor area of
approximately 14,188.57 square meters (the “Hotel Premises”)
for cinema and hotel operation respectively. The terms in relation
to lease term and rent of the Cinema Lease Agreement and the
Hotel Lease Agreement are summarized as follows:

(b)
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Lease Term A term of |5 years, commencing from the date following the date of the actual delivery of
the said premises by the Landlord to the Tenant (the “Lease Term”).
THEA FXMEFERRMN Lt EBRB AR BB ISF ( [HHA] ) -
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Cinema Lease Agreement

TRER R
Rent The amount payable by the Tenant to the
ko Landlord for a particular rental year during

the Lease Term is equivalent to () the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount (as
defined below), (2) the yearly Fixed Cinema
Lease Amount and the Variable Cinema
Lease Amount (as defined below) or (3) the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount and the
De Minimis Amount (as defined below) (as
the case may be) (collectively, the “Cinema
Rent").
HEAERAS T HEFERNEENE A
BERO)FEEEXREEFE(EERT
X)) QFEEEZEMEERIEA R EE
HERAE(EZL TR FEREZHLE
EXBEEFEFECGEE R T (RIERT
E) (S [hRER D -

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited

Hotel Lease Agreement

EIERE A
Hotel Rent (the “Hotel Rent™)

A rate at RMBI.4 per square meter per day
(the “Initial Hotel Rent Rate”) for the first three
years from the date following the delivery of
the Hotel Premises (the “Hotel Lease Initial
Period”). During the Hotel Lease Initial Period,
the yearly Hotel Rent (1) for the first rental
year during the Lease Term shall amount to
approximately RMB4,833,572.85 (inclusive of
tax) taking into consideration of the rent
exemption period (being the period of four
months from the date following the delivery of
the Hotel Premises) and (2) for the second
and third rental year during the Hotel Lease
Term shall amount to approximately
RMB7,250,359.27 per year. The Initial Hotel
Rent Rate will be increased by 8% every three
years from the end of the Hotel Lease Initial
Period during the Hotel Lease Term (the
“Subsequent Hotel Rent Rate”).
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Cinema Lease Agreement

TRER SR

(@) Fixed Cinema Lease Amount (the “Fixed

@

Cinema Lease Amount”)
BEE#EMEERE ( [EEZEHBEER
')

A rate at RMBI.35 per square meter
per day (the “Initial Cinema Rent Rate”)
for the first three years from the date
following the delivery of the Cinema
Premises (the “Cinema Lease Initial
Period"). During the Cinema Lease
Initial Period, the yearly Fixed Cinema
Lease Amount (1) for the first rental
year during the Cinema Lease Term
shall amount to approximately
RMB5,625,394.97 (inclusive of tax)
taking into consideration of the Cinema
Rent Exemption Period and (2) for the
second and third rental year during the
Lease Term amount to approximately
RMB8,438,092.45 (inclusive of tax) per
year.
BERYERNBHEHE=F(Ek
HEVMHD Z2EXZABRTTHIARAR
BIBT(NEZHEEASEER]) - R
RAEEH - FEETEFRBEERIE()
AN EREEEEFERNAARE
562539497 L (BHEHIE) » Bt k¥
AR QRERE-_LE=(EHEE
EXNREFEARES438092457T (B
BIE) -

The Initial Cinema Rent Rate will be
increased by 8% every three years from
the end of the Cinema Lease Initial
Period during the Cinema Lease Term
(the "Subsequent Cinema Rent Rate”).
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Hotel Lease Agreement
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Cinema Lease Agreement

TRER R

(b) Variable Lease Amount (the “Variable

®)

Lease Amount”)

TEEERE ([TRREHE )

In the event that the yearly cinema
commission amount (as the case may
be, the amount which is equivalent to:
(i) 14% of the annual Net Box Office'
for each rental year during the first to
the fifth rental year of the Lease Term;
(i) 15% of the annual Net Box Office'
for each rental year during the sixth to
the tenth rental year of the Lease Term;
or (iii) 16% of the annual Net Box
Office' for each rental year during the
eleventh to the fifteenth rental year of
the Lease Term) (the “Cinema
Commission Amount”) exceeds the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount for
a particular rental year during the Lease
Term, an amount equivalent to the
difference between the yearly Cinema
Commission Amount and the yearly
Fixed Cinema Lease Amount shall be
payable by the Tenant to the Landlord.

HREPASEMEFENFEZ M
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Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited

Hotel Lease Agreement
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Cinema Lease Agreement

TRER SR
(c) De Minimis Amount (the “De Minimis

©

Amount”)
RIEFA ([&ERIED)

De Minimis Amount is the maximum
amount which would render the
entering into of the Cinema Lease
Agreement with the payment of the
Variable Cinema Lease Amount for a
particular rental year during the Lease
Term by the Tenant to the Landlord
being constituted as a fully exempt
continuing connected transaction under
Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules
RIEFRASRE ETRBIE 14A76
% BEFI RS HETRE
BN EFEMEP M A&
BT B SRR E 2 A R R R
MERXGS R ERREEHE -

Notwithstanding the above, in the event
that (1) the yearly Cinema Commission
Amount exceeds the yearly Fixed Cinema
Lease Amount and (2) the yearly Variable
Cinema Lease Amount exceeds the De
Minimis Amount for a particular rental year
during the Cinema Lease Term, the Tenant
shall pay an amount equivalent to (1) the
yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount and (2)
the De Minimis Amount to the Landlord
for the relevant rental year. As such, in the
event that the Variable Lease Amount
exceeds the De Minimis Amount for a
particular rental year, the Variable Lease
Amount payable by the Tenant for that
particular rental year will be no more than
the De Minimis Amount. The amount
equivalent to the difference between the
Variable Lease Amount and the De
Minimis Amount will not be payable by the
Tenant to the Landlord, unless the
Company re-complies with the
requirements under the Listing Rules.
BEWL  RERBEHAANSEEE
FE M) FEZRMSBRFE
BEFREERBN Q) FEAIEY
BtEERIBBARENIE  HPA
REREEFEREENAER
(HFEEEZEERIA KR ()&
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H A] 8 B 5RIE 8 B & K K
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RS 7 A] & & IR A K IR
& TR FRH) SRR

The box office minus the value-added tax and the Special State Film
Undertaking Development Fund (BIREFZIHE £), amounting
to 5% of the box office, which may be subject to changes of the
relevant regulations of the respective departments in the PRC.

Hotel Lease Agreement
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As at the date of the Cinema Lease Agreement and the Hotel
Lease Agreement, the Landlord was owned as 75% by Orange
Sky Land and 25% by Beijing Orange Land. Orange Sky Land was
indirect wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Kebo. Beijing Orange Land was
wholly-owned by Beijing Orange Sky, which was in turn held as
to 99% by Zeng Qingxin (who held the shareholding interests in
Beijing Orange Sky in accordance to the instructions of Mr. Wu
Kebo) and 1% by Ms. Wu Keyan. Mr. Wu Kebo was the Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company. Ms. Wu Keyan was
the Director and the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo. Accordingly, the
Landlord, being the associate of Mr. Wu Kebo and Ms. Wu Keyan
was a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to HKFRS 16, the entering into of the Cinema Lease
Agreement and the Hotel Lease Agreement as a lessee will
require the Group to recognise the Cinema Premises and the
Hotel Premises as the right-of-use assets in relation to the Fixed
Cinema Lease Amount and the Hotel Rent, thus the entering into
of the Lease Agreements with the Fixed Cinema Lease Amount
and the Hotel Rent and the transactions contemplated
thereunder will be regarded as deemed acquisition of assets and
connected transactions by the Group. The Fixed Cinema Lease
Amount under the Cinema Lease Agreement, the Hotel Rent
under the Hotel Cinema Lease Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Leases in relation to Beijing Office Premises

On 29 January 2019, Lessor and Shanghai Orange Sky Jiayin Shiye
Company Limited (L& RXZFZE BB AF]), entered into
a lease agreement in respect of sub-leasing of office premises at
the portion of first and portion of second floor of house No.3 at
No.| Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
the PRC, with a total floor area of approximately |,171 square
meter for the period, from 29 January 2019 to 31 December
2021 at the rent of RMB8.8 per square meter per day with the
management fee of RMB0.848 per square meter per day. The
total rental for the term of this agreement amounts to
RMBI1,347,733.35 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,163,370.69); and the total management fee for the term
of this agreement amounts to RMB1,093,508.86 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,268,470.28).

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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Also, on 29 January 2019, the Lessor and It REERX=/"ZE%
EIEABMR AT (Beijing Orange Sky 360 Theatre Management
Company Limited), entered into a lease agreement in respect of
sub-leasing of office premises at third floor of house No.3 &
portion of second floor of house No.7 & house No.5 at No.|
Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC, with a total floor area of approximately 1,960.88 square
meter for the period from 29 January 2019 to 31 December
2021 at the rent of RMB8.8 per square meter per day with the
management fee of RMB0.848 per square meter per day. The
total rental for the term of this agreement amounts to
RMB19,002,171.97 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,042,519.49); and the total management fee for the term
of this agreement amounts to RMBI,831,118.39 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,124,097.33).

As at the date of the above lease agreements, Zeng Qingxin
(who held the shareholding interests in the Lessor in accordance
to the instructions of Mr. Wu Kebo) and Ms. Wu Keyan held 99%
and 1% of the equity interest in the Lessor respectively. Mr. Wu
Kebo, the chairman, a Director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company. Ms. Wu Keyan was a Director and the sister of Mr.
Wu. Therefore, the Lessor was a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated the above
lease agreements constituted connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 3| December
2019, no other connected transactions were entered into by the
Company.

F3572019
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has entered into
and engaged in the following transactions and arrangements with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company:

(a) Cinema Lease Agreement

Reference is made to the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions — (b) Cinema and Hotel Lease Agreements” above.

As disclosed above, in the event that the yearly Cinema
Commission Amount exceeds the yearly Fixed Cinema Lease
Amount for a particular rental year during the Lease Term, an
amount equivalent to the difference between the yearly Cinema
Commission Amount and the yearly Fixed Cinema Lease Amount
shall be payable by the Tenant to the Landlord (i.e. the Variable
Lease Amount). In addition, pursuant to the Cinema Lease
Agreement, the property management service fee payable is
initially at a rate of RMBO.5 per square meter per day for the
property management services at the Cinema Premises (the
“Initial Management Fee") provided by the Landlord for the first
three rental years (the “Initial Management Fee Period”), which
amounts to (I) approximately RMB2,083,479.62 (inclusive of
water and air conditioning bills and tax) for the first rental year
during the Lease Term and (2) approximately RMB3,125,219.43
(inclusive of water and air conditioning bills and tax) per year for
the second and third rental year during the Lease Term. The
Initial Management Fee will be increased by 8% every three years
from the end of Initial Management Fee Period.

As at the date of the Cinema Lease Agreement, the Landlord
was owned as 75% by Orange Sky Land and 25% by Beijing
Orange Land. Orange Sky Land was indirect wholly-owned by
Mr. Wu Kebo. Beijing Orange Land was wholly owned by Beijing
Orange Sky, which was in tum held as to 99% by Zeng Qingxin
(who held the shareholding interests in Beijing Orange Sky in
accordance to the instructions of Mr. Wu Kebo) and 1% by Ms.
Wu Keyan. Mr. Wu Kebo was the Director and controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Wu Keyan was the Director
and the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo. Accordingly, the Landlord, being
the associate of Mr. Wu Kebo was a connected person of the
Company. Pursuant to HKFRS 16, the entering into of the
Cinema Lease Agreement as a lessee will require the Group to
recognize the Variable Cinema Lease Amount linked to sales to
be recognized as expenses incurred by the Group over the term
of the Cinema Lease Agreement, thus the entering into of the
Cinema Lease Agreement with the Variable Cinema Lease
Amount and the transactions contemplated thereunder will be
regarded as a continuing connected transaction under Rule
[4A31 of the Listing Rules. In addition, the provision of property
management services at the Cinema Premises by the cinema
property manager appointed by the Landlord under the Cinema
Lease Agreements also constitutes continuing connected
transactions under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The aggregate amount paid by the Group to the Landlord for the
year ended 3| December 2019 amounted to HK$nil, which was
within the annual cap of RMB5,756,797.50 (equivalent to
HK$6,562,749.15).

72 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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(b) Lease in relation to Beijing Office Premises

On 31 August 2016, Beijing Orange Sky (the “Lessor’) entered
into a sub-lease agreement with IE RIEE R ARG RERR A
7] (Orange Sky Golden Harvest (Beijing) TV & Film Production
Company Limited) (the "“Sublease”) in relation to the sub-leasing
of the office premises with a total floor area of approximately
6.75 square metres occupying a portion of the second floor of
House No. 3 situated at No. | Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC for a term commencing from
| September 2016 and expiring on 31 August 2019 (both dates
inclusive) at total rental amounting to RMB46,564.88 and total
management fee amounting to RMB5,173.88. As at the date of
the Sublease, Mr. Wu Kebo and Ms. Wu Keyan were connected
persons of the Company. As the entire equity interest of the
Lessor was owned by Mr. Wu Kebo and Ms. Wu Keyan, the
Lessor was an associate of Mr. Wu Kebo and Ms. Wu Keyan and
thus, a connected person of the Company. The aggregate amount
paid by the Group to the Landlord for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$nil, which was within the
annual cap of approximately RMB10,194,401.23 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,825,505.43). Upon to the expiry of the
Sublease, it ceased to be a continuing connected transaction of
the Company.

Confirmation from Directors

The Directors, including the non-executive Directors, have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have advised that nothing has come to
their attention that caused them to believe the continuing connected

transactions:

(@)  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services;

(c)  have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

(d) the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the relevant
announcements of the Company, where applicable, have been
exceeded during the financial year ended 3| December 2019.

F#52019

(b) ARAERMOEMEZER

RZZE—XNFENA=Z+—8  EZBEKR(H
BADBEIEEEXERERUIEGR QAR
VoBRBHTH2BAN])  REE@EI MM
R B R MG R/ N2 SBRLTRE | 5
SMB_ELOWMAEYE - LEARRBOAE
675 F K BZZE—ARFNLA—BHRE=-ZE
—NWENA=Z+—RH(BEEREMB)IL &
HEABARE 4656488 TR AEBREAAR
#5,17388 70 - MO MO BEH ARk k.
MirFEztARNRRZEEAL - BRH
AR ERORELERAR R TR
£ MHBAAEARFELERARRZLY
BEA - AHARRBZHEEALT - BHEZ
T-hhF+_A=Z+—BLFE AEEH
ETINNBRSEATEL BEFELRY
AR#10,194,40123 70 (FHEHA4Y 11,825,505.43
BEIL)MEER - £ MENERE - HTH
RARBIMFERERS -

EEER

EX(BRINTER)CEMNSERERS - L
RREXSIRAKE AR R —REBKBIET - 2
—REERRR BB E =T ERE mARE
Bt 2 G URBREZEXHZE@HEE
7 BGFEBRATEE  FEARARRERT

25 ©

BARBRBEEM  EY ST EMNEERE
HREHERERS

@

(®)

©

©)

RERESEEHE
BREEEREARB ZZINEEATEL
RIRRAE B EBRERAETT

REBATHITRARBEREZER S 2
SEAL S GRS

BHEARREAAGAREBRE T —NF
ToAZT ALV BRFEZHAESELR
(FEA) ©

BErERge (@ FRAT /3



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHEE

Save as disclosed above, details of the other connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions for the year ended 3|
December 2019 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
These other connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions constituted de minimis transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules and were exempt from the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval, and in the case of continuing
connected transactions, the annual review requirements. The
independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and confirmed
that these other connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For the year ended 3| December 2019, the Corporate Governance
Report is set out on pages 25 to 40 of the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and community
involvement are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report Section in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration of the employees of the Group is made/determined by
reference to the market, individual performance and their respective
contribution to the Group. As a long-term incentive, the 2009 Share
Option Scheme is in place and the details of which are set out above
and in note 24 to the financial statements on pages 136 to 139 of this
annual report.

Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonus and share option, are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, abilities,
reputation and performance.

74 Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited

B EXHWEEIN RBEE-ZT-NAF+-_A=+—
ALFEETZHBBERS R AFERERSH
HE BN BMAMEL ZEEMBERS
R/ S ERE R HER ET AR EERS
ERPETRE  NE  BUBRMAR (GFFERH
BREME)FREMZRE - BISFRITESTC
EHUBRZSEMEERZ R, IFEHERS
TIRAREBERE R —MREHBEP - B—RAXK
R TNENELE =T RS A AR E R %
FURBEREZEXHZEBHHET - BER
HBATRE  HAARBRREENEA -

AN\ A e s
= "é:/l:l

HE-ZT-AF+-_A=+—HIEFE tEEHR
WMEMNAFRE B E408 °

B2 R
ARFE BESBIIRITEFRR L TRAE3

BREEGF2BUIMRRE  TRREEBEILHE
WITERHABIUIE -

RERE
AR TIRARE Rt B8 BB RN A RS -

HERERRE -

i BUR

AEBEEBZHWIHELBME - ABARBREES
ZEEAEECERET - AKEERRY =TT
FRHRETEEARPEENE - FBREARAFR
2032206 B 2 B 5 MwEMIFE24 o

EEMeARARRFHEZEeRE R EESESH
Mo RibE M (B ERIBEALERE) RhESS
SEZEEZME  £h BERRBMETE -

Annual Report 2019



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHREE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of the Company's issued share capital as of the
date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Group has made
charitable and other donations in Hong Kong totalling HKS$nil.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG (“KPMG") who will retire and being
eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as
auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBEN R E

KPMG

to the shareholders of
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 83 to 149, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3|
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘‘the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBENRE

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

HEBEEERENTE

Refer to note |5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 2(k).

BB E TS BARNI | 5 R 200 BBl B 5 ©

The Key Audit Matter
BARETER

The carrying value of the Group's goodwill which amounted
to HK$661,582,000 as at 31 December 2019 was allocated
to the Group's exhibition business and distribution and
production business.
EEER_ZT-NLF+_A=Z=+—HBEEES
6615820008 THHBERNAE BERENFHELN
R BAT R BUERTS »

Management performs an annual impairment assessment of
goodwill by assessing its value in use by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast and comparing the net present
value of the cash flow forecast with carrying value of the cash
generating unit ( “CGU” ) to which the goodwill has been
allocated to determine if any impairment is required.
EREESFHHBEITRENL  TERBBHREM
RASRETRR NAHE R ETRR H)FRE LS I
BENRSEASEY ( [REELEM] ) NKREE
ETLERFGHENERAEER EMEEREFE
TR ETRUE

Management is required to exercise significant judgement in
estimating the future revenue and future gross margins to be
generated from movies to be distributed or produced by the
Group. The movie market is dynamic and the reception of
the market to the Group’s movies is inherently uncertain.
EEENAR BEEESTEROTHREENERZELN
AREM s BARREN KRG AITEEKRAE - EXMH5
REVER - MmsY BREEXNEXEEFER
BETHEEN o

We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because determining the level of
impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement in forecasting future cash flows and
estimating the recoverable amount of the CGU both of
which are inherently uncertain and may be subject to
management bias.

B AR BN BERES SRRETFH  REA
RETRERERE (E) PRERENBARIRE
mEMGFREELEMNAIKLESBEIELSEH
i - T b mESFERA K NEE R A X B IE
EBHmRLH -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMES A REZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BRI HE B BERENSEEFEREA TSR

. evaluating management'’s identification of the CGU,
the amount of goodwill and other assets allocated to
the CGU and the methodology adopted in the
impairment assessment with reference to the
requirement of the prevailing accounting standards;
2ERTGHERNRE - FEEEBHRSE
ABMHNERNTN  TRERSELBUNRE
K EAE E S RIARFHERERRAN X

. comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecast, including future revenue
and future gross margins, with the historical
performance of the CGU and assessing these inputs
with reference to industry forecasts and statistics;
AL IR IR & i B TR P E R REXNEARE

(BREARY L ARKENR) BRSELHN
BUBERIVEITILR - WRETEER KA H
BRHEZFE AR

. evaluating the discount rate used in the cash flow
forecast by benchmarking against other similar
companies in the same industry;
S2RAXEMRBRRRFERSRERAHEA
HIRRIR &

. performing sensitivity analysis of the discount rate and
future revenue and considering the resulting impact
on management's conclusion in respect of the
impairment assessment and whether there were any
indicators of management bias; and
HRGR KR NORRIR S ETHRREEDNT - WERBE
EREAMBENMNERELENTERERT
EERERALNTR : &

. considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the impairment assessment of
goodwill, including the key assumptions and
sensitivities, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
SLERTEHAERNORE - ZRESVBHRERE
AEEREFEORE  EREIERREER
g o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBEN R E

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relating to film exhibition
operations (“Cinema Related Assets”) which were stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses at
amounts of HK$298,779,000 and HK$1,239,257,000
respectively.

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—0  ESEBEEEIHES
HBENYE BERRBARCAEEE(EZHHEBRE
ED DEERARZRATERREEBBEIE 2RI A
298,779.0007 7L & 1,239,257,0003 7T °

At the financial reporting date, the Group reviewed the film
exhibition operations to determine whether there were any
indicators of impairment. When indicators of impairment are
identified, management assesses the recoverable amounts of
the Cinema Related Assets. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense in the consolidated income statement if the
carrying amounts of the Cinema Related Assets exceed their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts of the
Cinema Related Assets are the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

RUBREEY - BEEECRMBYREBLEE UEERS
HREFRETR - EREEPRBERLTRER - BEE
AR EEN AT D 5 - MEMEREENREE
HBERR O SEE  BREBBERGS RERER /A -

THEREENFIKEEES N AR EREERERERE
H o

The calculation of the recoverable amounts of the Cinema
Related Assets is performed by the Group’s management. In
assessing the value in use, the projected cash flows associated
with the Cinema Related Assets are discounted using risk-
adjusted discount rates. The preparation of discounted cash
flow forecasts can be highly subjective and requires the
exercise of significant management judgement and
estimation, in particular in determining forecast box office
takings, forecast confectionary sales, forecast screen
advertising, growth rates and discount rates applied.
THEREENTIROSES EXREETEEFE - ReHE
EREER  ZHAEEERBREARREBERREE
AL FGEITHAER - MBS REBANRHEEIH - F
EERBEBERERHABH LG  FREENREKRATR
A NERHEREN  REESERA  BRXRAER
EBRIR X -
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of property,
plant and equipment relating to the Group’s Cinema Related
Assets included the following:

HPFEAR BEXRBEFMAREENDE  BE KRB
MBERNETIZF BIEA TS -

. evaluating management's process and procedures for
the identification of indicators of potential impairment
of the Cinema Related Assets as at 31 December
2019;
AEEREEURRAN-_ZE-NAF+_A=+—HZR
HAEEBEEREDR ZBRERIET

. evaluating the methodology used by management in
the preparation of the impairment assessment models
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

A ERER2ZERITEMERRERE RE
BHPAAA

0 with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,

comparing the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the value in use calculations of the Cinema Related
Assets prepared by the Group's management,
including forecast box office takings, forecast
confectionary sales, forecast screen advertising, growth
rates and discount rates applied, with available market
data;
ERMOABEEERNH T - HEBAEEEER
REEHEMRANERATIRR (BREFRAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2R RS

We identified assessing impairment of Cinema Related e evaluating the historical accuracy of the key
Assets as a key audit matter because of the significant assumptions and most significant inputs used in the
management judgement and estimation required in making prior year's discounted cash flow forecast, including
assumptions and estimations which are inherently uncertain box office takings, confectionary sales, screen
and could be subject to management bias. advertising and growth rates, by comparison with the
B ET MR E ERREN RARETER - REAR actual outcomes in the current year and enquiry of
EERR R AT EEE B ELERAE R A - Fm management in respect of the reasons for any
ENFHEEA T EEMR AT ERENRR LA significant variations identified; and

BEHLAFENERER  HE L —FEMNRR
EREBBAMRANEZREIEREZNBAE (R
EEWA - N EINHEE REESEREER)RD
i WHAERNEMNERZRZAABTERE &

. performing sensitivity analyses to determine the extent

of change in those estimates that, either individually or
collectively, would be required for the Cinema Related
Assets to be materially misstated and considering the
likelihood of such a movement in those key estimates
arising and whether there was any evidence of
management bias.
ETHREDN AT EXHEBEELIRERER
B BERT - BREF PR EEE (T E Rk
HEA)WEZEEZSEREAHRBHO AN - ARE
CEBBETXERENRALA °

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED #R& B8R Rk EZ BED 3R & LA b
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT M= &

THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EFTHEMEL AR - A ELSBETIHNFIR
information comprises all the information included in the annual report, ~ AKIZEME S - BN BEES MHHRE R K MINZ

other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s HEMIRE o
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover ~ HFIEGEMBRENERL PREEMES - &
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance IR R ZEHME B BERTATMANEE &
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, ~ B ARG BB IRERNB - RANTERME
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, {8 @ FEUBIET  ZTEEMELSSTELS
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with B AR K AEBTRIEFATHROBEREFHEE
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the ~ AEME LT HFEERERBRAMAER -

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa ~ EREMERITHILIE - IREMIBSEMERT
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to =~ FEEAR#HRIRIM - KMIBEREZFE - EE7@E -
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. BIVRB MRS -

FH#2019 BREFME (B ARAT /9



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBEN R E

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic afternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBENRE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's interal control.

c Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

0 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBEN R E

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lee Ka Nang.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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